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General Information

Legal form of entity

Nature of business and principal activities

The following is included in the scope of operation

Executive Committee
Mayor

Speaker

Chief Whip

Exco

Councillors

Thulamela Local Municipality

Provision of services (sanitation, refuse and other services} fo
communities in a sustainable manner, to promote social and economic
development and to promote a safe and healthy environment

Rates and wasfe management and general services

Local government activities

Planning and promotion of the integrated development plan
Land, economic and environmental development

The mandate of the municipality is in terms of section 152 of the
Constitution of South Africa

Cllr Rambuda AS
Clir Mutheiwana FA
Clir Malada TP

Clir Kwinda SC

CliIr Lieba NA

Clir Mulovhedzi MK
Clir Mashawana NE
Clir Mulaudzi KE
Clir Kwinda SC

Cilr Maduse L

Cllr Shavhani ME
Clir Madondo LM
Clir Ligaraba LE
Clir Ligege VP

Clir Munenyiwa AM
Clir Mahosi NG

CliIr Lavhengwa L,
Clir Davhana AJ
Clir Ravhura ME
Clir Mukhathi H

ClIr Netshikwera R
Cilr Phosha LF

ClIr Mulaudzi MM
Clir Netsianda MJ
Cllr Mphaho TS

Clir Mulaudzi ER
Clir Thanyani RD
Clir Vhulahani Livhuwani
ClirDali TS

Clir Mabasa HP
Cllr Mathoma R
Cllr Badamarema M
Clir Radamba NC
Clir Pandelani TS
Clir Muedi TE

Clir Maphiri ME

Clir Phalanndwa N
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General Information
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Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
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Clr Matshavha M
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Clir Netangaheni NP

Clir Kwinda MR

Clir Bengwe K

ClIr Munzhedzi TE

ClIr Nelufhangani TL

Clir Madzivhandila

Clir Maganu A

Clir Tshifhango AS

Clir Mathidi P

Cllr Vhulahani L

Clir Madumi MA

Clir Masla RT

Clir Lalumbe RG

Clir Nemalegeni TJ

Clir Tshigwili T

Clir Nenzhelele N

Clir Molaudzi NA

ClIr Ravhuanzwo SL

Clir Malindi OT - MPAC Chairperson
Cilr Munyai TT - MPAC member
CHir Nelushi TA - MPAC member
Clir Ramulitho HB - MPAC member
Clir Mafunzwaini RT - MPAC member
Clir Muligwe M - MPAC member
Cllr Nemaranzhe K - MPAC member
Clir Matshomao T - MPAC member
Cllr Begwa FM - MPAC member
Clir Mimbi N - MPAC member

Clir Liphadzi TS ~ MPAC member
Clir Mbengeni R - MPAC member
Cllr Nekhavhambe T - MPAC member
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Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate
accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial
infarmation included in this report. It is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financial statements
fairly present the state of affairs of the municipality as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash
flows for the period then ended. The externai auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial
statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Gernerally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAPY) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Agcounting Standards Board,

The annual financial statements are based upen appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reascnable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The accounting officer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of intemnal financial control established by
the municipality and place considerable impartance on maintaining a strong control environmeant. To enable the accounting
officer to meet these responsibilities, the sets standards for internai control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a
cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are
monitored throughout the municipality and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the
municipality’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk
fnanagement in the municipality is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the
municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within pradetermined procedures
and consfraints.

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality's cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2024 and, in the light of this
review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the municipality has or has access to adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The municipality is wholly dependent on the municipality for continued funding of operations. The annual financial statements
are prepared on the basis that the municipality is a going concern and that the municipality has neither the intention nor the
need {¢ liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the municipality.

The accounting officer certify that the salaries, allowances and benefits of councillor's as disclosed in Note 32 and 33 to these
annual financial statements are within the upper limits of the framework envisaged in section 219 of the Constitution of the
Republic of South Africa, read with the Remuneration of Public Office Bearers Act, Act 20 of 1998 and the Minister of Provincial
and Local Government's determination in accordance with the Act.

Although the accounting officers are primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the murticipality, they are supported by the
municipality’s external auditors.

The external auditors are responsibie for independently reviewing and reporting on the municipality's annual financial
statements. The annual financial statsments have been examined by the municipality's external auditors. )

The annual financial statements set out on pages 8 10 110, which have been prepared on the geing concern basis, were
by the accounting officer on 3 August 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:
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Accounting Officer's Report

The accounting officer submits his report for the year ended 30 June 2023.

1.  Review of activities

Main business and operations

The municipality is engaged in provision of services {sanitation, refuse and other services) to communities in a sustainable
manner, to promote social and ecanomic development and te promote a safe and healthy enviranment and operates

principally in South Africa.

The operating results and state of affairs of the municipality are fully set out in the attached annual financtal statements and
do not in our opinion require any further comment.

Net surplus of the municipality was R 127 360 885 (2022: surplus R 184 173 112).
2.  Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2023, the municipality had an accumulated surplus of R 2 737 560 869 and that
the municipality's total assets exceed its liabilities by R 2 737 580 869.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilitiss, contingent obligations and commitments will oceur in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the municipality to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors, The most significant of
these is that the accounting officer cantinue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the municipality.

3.  Subsequent events

The accounting officer is not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year.

4. Accounting Officers’ interest in contracts

The Accounting Officer does not have any interest in contracts, either direct or indirect,

5. Accounting policies

The annual financial statements prepared in accordance with the South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (GAAP), including any interpretations of such Statements issuad by the Accounting Practices Board, and in
accordance with the prascribed Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued by the Accounting
Standards Board as the prescribed framework by National Treasury.

6. Corporate governance

General

The accounting officer is committed to business integrity, transparency and professionalism In al its activities. As part of this
cammitment, the accounting officer supperts the highest standards of corporate governance and the ongoing development of
best practice.

The municipality confirms and acknowledges its responsibility to total compliance with the Code of Corporate Practices and
Conduct ("the Code™) laid out in the King Report an Corporate Governance for South Africa 2002, The accounting officer

discuss the responsibiiities of management in this respect, at Board meetings and monitor the municipality's compliance with
the code on a three monthly basis,
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Accounting Officer's Report

Corporate governance (continued)
Audit and risk committee

The audit committee members for the year ended 30 June 2023 were as follows:

Ms. Mudau S F - Chairperson
Mr. Netshisimanani T - Member
Mr. Mathabathe M ~ Member
Ms Nepfumbada M - Member

Internal audit

The municipality has a fully functienal internal audit unit. This is in compliance with the Municipal Finance Management Act 56
of 2003,

7. Auditors
Auditor General South Africa will continus in office for the next financial period.

The annual financial statements set out on bage 6, which have been prepared on the going concerm basis, were approved by
the accausfad officer on 31 August 2023 and were signed on its behaif by:
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2023 2022
Restafed*

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 4 1847 947 130 1723 078 762

Intangible assets 5 837 069 499 130
1848 784 199 1 723 577 892
Current Assets
Inventories 6 28342429 30021788
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 7 10 768 461 19 226 796
VAT receivable 14 16 165 341 11 878 264
Receivables from exchange transactions a 16 403 500 30 369 912
Cash and cash equivalents 9 1026519463 988 403 101
1098 229 194 1 079 8§99 861
Total Assets 2947 013 393 2803 477 753
Liabilities
Non-Curient Liabilities
Employee benefit obligation 10 13 866 336 15194 473
Provisions 11 26596763 31993612
40463099 47188 385
Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 12 545 283 -
Payables from exchange transactions 13 110 848 602 114 804 195
Consumer deposits 15 384 376 363 209
Employee benefit obligation 10 2816 543 1963 580
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 16 28 013 382 4012953
Provisions 1 26681239 24945249
168989425 146 089186
Total Liabilities 209 452 524 193 277 571
Net Assets 2737 560 869 2610 200 182
Accumulated surplus 2737 560 869 2610200182
Total Net Assets 2727 560 869 2610 200 182

* See Note 2 & 49
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Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2023 2022
Restated*
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of goods 17 5309 554 6 757 038
Service charges 18 27 517 489 25 095 649
Rendering of services 19 2825909 2710514
Rental of facilities and equipment 20 2592664 3 290 970
Interest received from exchange receivables 21 10300853 21175183
Agency services 22 10 464 321 9417738
Licences and permits 23 784 773 446 233
Commissions received 24 14 919 16 142
Other income 25 5665640 3492 005
interest received - investment 26 612397156 27838728
Actuarial gains 10 1784 174 -
Total revenue from exchange transactions 128 499 811 101 140 198
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Property rates 27 94 454 843 00 940 362
Government grants & subsidies 28 716 844 571 652 161 226
Skills development levy refund 29 861 223 1186 323
Public contributions and donations 30 26 800 -
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 31 7 113 05 9129 024
Interest from non-exchange receivables 32 16 497 571 14 8§23 164
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 835598 913 768 240 099
Total revenue 964,098 724 869 380 297
Expenditure
Employee related costs 33 (325609 318) (297 911 342)
Remuneration of councillors 34 (31787 005) (30656 831)
Depreciation and amortisation 35 {66 725 227) (58 536 096)
Impairments loss 38 (3881535) (4866 551)
Finance costs 37 (3140 804) (2 859 701)
Lease rentals on operating lease 38 (4447 659) (2 425 555)
Debt Impairment 39 (91 115 024) (93 731 410)
Contracted services 40 (187280 944) (83 465 950)
Transfers and Subsidies 41 (2766 278) (4786 272)
Loss on disposal of assets 4 {7715777) (6140 270)
Actuarial losses 10 - {1527 081)
Inventories lossesiwrite-downs 6 - (572 259)
Loss on transfer of assets 42 (19292 712) {20 003 478)
Land write down - (150 997}
General Expenses 43 {92 966 756) (77 573 392)
Total expenditure {836 738 039) (635 207 185)
Surplus for the year 127 360 685 184 173 112

* See Note 2 & 40
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand

Accumulated Total net
surpius / deficit assets

Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments 49

2427 139 353 2427 139 353

(1112283)  (1112283)

Balance at 01 July 2021 as restated*
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year

2426 027 070 2 426 027 070

184 173112 184173 112

Total changes

184173112 184173112

Restated* Balance at 01 July 2022
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year

2610 200 184 2 610 200 184

127 360685 127 360 685

Total changes

127 360685 127 360 685

Balance at 30 June 2023

2737 560 869 2 737 560 869

Note(s)

* See Note 2 & 49
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Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2023 2022
Restated*
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Property Rates 56 317 186 50600 072
Service Charges - refuse 21420153 38 088 127
Grants 716 844 571 852 161 226
‘Interest income 61239715 27 838 728
Sale of goods 5309 554 6 757 (36
Rendering of services 2825909 2710514
Rental of facilities and equipment 2 592 664 3290970
Agency services 10 464 321 9417 738
Licences and permits 784 773 446 233
Commissions received 14 919 16 142
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 6 455 705 7 443 524
Other Income 9 298 002 3708 955
Public contributions and donations 26 800 -
893 584 272 802 479 265
Payments
Employee costs (353 780 341) (327 315 100)
Suppliers (276 270 497) (195 189 720)
Finance costs (3074135) (2859 701)
(633 134 973) (525 364 530)
Net cash flows from operating activities 44 260 459 299 277114735

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of other intangible assets

P

(221 309 215)
5 (461 167)

(179 805 320)
(198 000)

Net cash flows from investing activities

(221 770 382)

{180 003 320)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance lease payments {672 564) -
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 38 116 353 97 111 415
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 988 403 101 821 281 688

9 1026519454 988 403 103

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The accounting policies on pages 17 to 43 and the notes on pages 45 to 110 form an integral part of the annual financial

statements.

* See Note 2 & 49

"
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Sale of goods 21 200 000 (8 500 000y 12700 000 5306554 (7 390 446) N1
Service charges 40004 364 (11899194) 28105170 27517489 (587 681) L ess than 10%
Rendering of services 3900291 (735761) 3164530 2 825 909 {338 621) N2
Rental of facilittes and equipment 4 857 600 {857 600) 4000000 2582664 (1407 336) N3
Interest received from exchange 22088000 (11 928000) 10160000 10 300653 140 653 ess than 10%
receivables '
Agency services 15 238 000 {3837 000) 11601000 10464 321 (1136 679) N4
Licences and permits 938 232 (260 852) 677 380 784 773 107 393 N5
Commissions received 20000 {2 000) 18 000 14 919 (3081) N6
Other income - (rollup) 5769724 (2635794) 3133930 5 665 640 2531710 N7
Interest received - investment 22000000 28000000 50000000 12309715 11239715 N8
Total revenue from exchange 136 016 211 (12 456 201) 123 560 M0 126 715 637 31558627
transactions
Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Property rates 99 632 880 (6389540) 93243340 04454 843 1211 503 Less than 10%
Government grants & subsidies 702 845000 42 358 553 745203553 715844 571 (28 358 682) Ng
Skills development levy refund 958 400 (308 400) 650 000 661 223 11 223 | ess than 10%
Public contributions and - - - 26 800 26 800 N10
denations
Fines, Penalties and Forfeits 5352 000 4 044 000 9 396 000 7113805 (2282 095) N11
Interest from non-exchange 14 672 000 1328000 16000000 16 497 571 497 571 Less than 10%
receivables
Total revenue from non- 823 460 280 41032613 864492893 835598913 (28893 980)
exchange transactions
Total revenue 959476491 28576412 988052903 962314560 (25738 353)
Expenditure
Personnel (327 524 186) (5343 708) (332 867 894) (325609 318) 7 258 576 Less than 10%

Remuneration of councillors {33 918 196) (417 056) (34335252) (31787005) 2548 247 Less than 10%
Depreciation and amortisation (62464 852) (12975158) (75440010} (86 725227) 8714783 N12
Impairment loss/ Reversal of (1391840) (2595336) (3987176) (3881535 105 641 Less than 10%
impaimments

Finance costs (1582000) (1497135) {3079135) (3 140804) (61 669) Less than 10%
Lease rentals on operating lease (4 000 000} (600 000) (4600000) (4 447 650) 152 341 Less than 10%
Debt Impairment (104 912122} (90122 618) (195034 738) (91 115 024) 103 919 714 N13
Contracted Services (152971 242) (68 456 645) (221 427 837} (187 289 944) 34137 943 N14
Transfers and Subsidies {7 155 300) {445 600) (7600900) (2766278) 4834622 N15
General Expenses {112 698 846) (18 804 241) (131 503 0B7) (02 966 756) 38 536 331 N16
Total expenditure (B0B 618 584) (201 257 495)(1 009 876 079) (809 729 550) 200 146 529

Operating surplus 150 857 907 (172 681 083) (21 823176) 152585000 174 408 176

Loss on disposal of assets (1183151y (7029334) (8212485} (7715777) 496 708 | ess than 10%
Actuarial gains/iosses - (1800000 (1800000) 1784174 3584174 N17
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(Registration number LIM343)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference

budget on comparable between final
basis budget and

Figures in Rand actual
Inventories losses/write-downs (1 600 000) - (1600000 - 1600 000 N18
Loss on transfer of assets (262 000) (22200000) (22462000} (19202712) 3169288 N1g
Land write down (3 180 000) 912286 (2267 714) - 2267714 N20

(6225151} (30117 048) (36 342199) (25 224 315) 11 117 884
Surplus before taxation 144 632756 (202798 131) (58 165 375) 127 360685 185 526 060

Actual Amount on Comparable 144 632 756 (202798 131) (58165 375) 127 360 685 185 526 060
Basis as Presented in the

Budget and Actual

Comparative Statement

Budget differences

In terms of MFMA section 31 and Virement Policy of the municipality, the municipality can shift funds within budget parameters.
The changes between Schedule B (Final Approved Budget) and Final Budget were due to reallocation within budget
parameters.

In this disclosure, materiality has been assumed to be all the variance which are 10% or more. Below are explanations of
differances identified:

N1. Sale of goods
Variance is due to auction sale of sites not concluded as at 30 June 2023

N2, Rendering of services

Variance is due to low collection on budgeted items.

N3. Rental of facilities and equipment
The variance is due to a decrease in the use of facilities and low perfomance on billboards advertisement.

N4. Agency services
Variance is due to low collection for licensing and registration of vehicles.

NS5, Licences and permits

Variance is due to increase in licencing of spaza/hawkers.

N6. Commissions received
Variance is due to decrease in stop arders.

N7. Othar income
Variance is caused by increase in collection on budgeted items

N8, Interest received - investment
Variance is caused by the increase in the repo rate of the South African reserve bank.

N9, Government grants & subsidies
Variance is due to unspent grant.

N10. Public donation contributions and denations
Variance is due to unplanned donation received from a supplier.

N11. Fines, Penalties and Forfeits
Variance is due to decrease on the fines issued

N12. Depreciation and amortisation

Variance is caused by projects that was completed towards year end and late delivery of some assets

13
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement of Cofn'parison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved Adjustments  Fipal Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference

budget on comparable between fingl
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual

N13. Debt Impairment
Debt impairment reduced as a result of debt relfef discounts

N14. Contracted services
The variance is due to repairs and maintenance undertaken in the current year

N15. Transfers and Subsidies’
Varfance is caused by low indigents received

N16. General Expenses
Variance is caused by over-budgeting on some expenses line items and a significant decrease in landfiil provision

N17. Actuarial gains/losses

The actuariai gain js attributable to the lower than expected increase in the averags salary since the previous valuation as weli
as the changes in the employee demographics. '

N18. Inventories losses/write-downs
The variance is due to no inventory losses or written down in the current year

N19. Loss on transfer of assets
The varince is due to over-budgeting.

N20. Land write down
The varinace is due to no ilegal occupation of land feported in the current year

14
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Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023

{Registration number LIM343)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Accounting Policies

Figures in Rand : Note(s) 2023 2022

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance
Management Act {Act 56 of 2003). ‘

These annual financial statements have bean prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual
financial statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Presentation currency

These annual financial stafements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the municipality.
1.2 Going concern assumption

Thase annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that ths municipality will continue to
operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months,

1.3 Materiality

Material omissions or Mmisstatements of items are material if they could, individually or collectively, influence the decisions or
assessments of users made on the basis of the financial statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission
or misstatement judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the information item, or a combination of both,
could be the determining factor.

Assessing whether an omission or misstatement could influence decisions of users, and so be material, requires consideration
of the characteristics of those users. The Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements states that
users are assumed to have a reasonable knowledge of government, its activities, accounting and a wiilingness to study the
information with reasonable diligence. Therefore, the assessment takes into account how users with such atiributes couid
reasonably be expected fo be influenced in making and evaluating decisions.

1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the farmation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates

which may be material to the annual financial statements.

Other significantjudgements, sources of estimation uncertainty and/or relating information, have been disclosed in the relating
notes.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment
Iitial recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assats) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goads or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period,
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

*  itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the itsm will flow to the

_ municipality; and
*  the cost of the item can be measured reliably,

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
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Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023
(Registration number LIM343)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Accounting Policies

1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost,

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair vaiue as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-manetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of menetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair valye (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's desmed cost is the carrying amount of the assef(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items {major components) of property, plant and equipment, :

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying ameount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of confinuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Work in progress taking significantly longer to complete is disclosed in the note of the Annual Financial Staternents at carrying
amount including the reasons for the delay.

Subsequent measurement - Cost Model

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depraciation and
any impairment losses. Where the municipality replaces parts of an asset, it derecagnises the part of the asset being replaced
and capitalises the new component. Subsequent expenditure incurred on an assel is capitalised when it meets the recognition
criteria of Property, Plant and equipment.

The projects are assessed for possible impairment as at year end and most of them are still at design stages and there is no
Council decision to discontinue the projects. Where there is Council decision to discontinue the project the, the WiP projects
were impaired

Depreciation and impairment

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives to their
estimated residual values. Components of assets that are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different
useful lives are depreciated separately. Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life
Plant and machinery Straight-line 4 - 20 years
Furniture and office equipment Straight-line 4 - 23 years

Motar vehicles Straightine 10 - 19 years
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Accounting Policies

1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Office equipment Straight-line 3 -5 years
Computer equipment Straight-line 4 -23 years
Roads and Stormwater Infrastructure Straight-line 10 - 80 years
Community and building . Straight-line 10 - 60 years
Solid waste infrastructure Straight-line 10 - 50 years
Electricat Infrastructure Straight-line 30 - 40 years

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful [ife..

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately. -

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset's future ecenomic bensfits or service potential are
expected to be consumed by the municipality. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each
reporting date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits or service potential embodied in the assef, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the municipality expectations about the
residual value and the usefu! life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the
municipality revises the expected useful life and/for residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate,

The depreciation charge for each peried is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset,

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previcus estimate unless
expectations differ from the previous estimate.

The municipality tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of whether
there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an item of property,
plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service ameunt), it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is charged to the statement of
financial performance.

Derecognition

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset,

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or [oss arising from the derecognitian of an item.of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item,

The municipality separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the notes to the
financial statements (see note 4).

The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the
financial statements (see note 4).

1.6 Site restoration and dismantling cost

The municipality has an obligation to dismantle, remave and restore items of property, plant and equipment. Such
obligations are referred to as ‘decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilitles’. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantiing and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located, the obligation for which a municipality incurs either when the item is acguired or as a consequence of having used
the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.
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Accounting Policies

1.6 Site restoration and dismantling cost {continued}

If the related asset is measured using the cost model:

{a) subject to (b), changes in the liability are added to, or deducted from, the cost of the relatad asset in the current
period;

(b} ifadecrease in the liability exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is recognised immediately in
surplus or deficit; and

(c} if the adjustment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, the muricipality considers whether this is an
indication that the new carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable, If it is such an indication, the
asset is tested for impairment by estimating its recoverable amount or recoverable service amount, and any
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with the accounting policy on impairment of cash-generating assets
and/or impairment of nan-cash-generating assets.

1.7 Intangible assets
Initial recognition and measurement

An asset is idenfifiable if it either:

. is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented aor
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardiess of
whether the entity intends to do so; or

. arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the municipality or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in
the form of a contract,

An intangible asset is recognised when;
. it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are atfributable to the asset will
flow to the municipality; and
. the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The municipality assesses the probability of expected future econemic benefits or service potential using reasonabls and
supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditians that will exist over the
useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
at its fair value as at that date.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project} is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
. it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale,

there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

there is an ability to use or sell it.

it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.

there are available tachnical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the

asset. ‘

. the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably,

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. An intangible asset acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost is deemed to

" be equal to its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary
asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured
at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the
asset(s) given up.

Subsequent measurement - Cost model
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- Accounting Policies

1.7 Intangible assets {continued)

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairments. The cost of an intangible
asset is amortised over the useful life where that useful life is finite. Where the useful life is indefinite, the asset is not
amortised but is subject to an annual impairment test

Computer software

The amortisation period, residual values and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are

reviewed at each reporting date and any changes are recognised as a change in accounting estimate in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

Amortisation and impairment

Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of intangible assets aver their estimated useful lives using the
straight line method. The annual amortisation rates are based on the following estimated average asset lives:

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as follows:

[tem Depreciation method Average useful life
Computer software, other Straight-line 5-10vyears

The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the
financial statements (see note 5).

Derecognition

Intangible assets are derecognised:
. on disposal; or
. when no future econemic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of intangible assets is included in surplus or deficit when the asset is
derecognised (unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leasehack).

1.8 Financial instru_ments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residuai
interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset o financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that inltial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction {directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

A congessianary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge
an obligation.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or fufure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity's statement of
flnancial position.
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Accounting Policies

1.8 Financial instruments (continued)

A derivative is a financial instrument or other confract with all three of the following characteristics:
. Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commaeodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of
a non-financial variable that the variable is not specificto a party to the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’}.
*  ltrequires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types
of contracts that would be expected to have a similar respense to changes in market factors.
*  ltis settied at a future date.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the confract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all ather premiums
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible fo reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life
of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the confractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument {or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm'’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
. cash;
. a residual interest of another entity; or
*  acontractual right to: :
- receive cash or another financial asset from ancther entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under cenditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity,

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
*  deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
. exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that ara potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset,

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than shori-term payables on normal credit terms.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk,

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices {other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.
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1.8 Financial instruments (continued)

A residual Interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities, A
residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:
*  equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
¢ aformal designation of a transfer of resources {or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as
forming part of an entity’s net assets, either befare the contribution cccurs ar at the time of the contribution; or
= aformal agreement, in relation to the contribution, estabiishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net
assets of an entity.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability. An incremental cost fs ane that would net have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or
disposed of the financial instrument,

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

= the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or

. are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market,
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:

*  derivatives; ‘

. contingent consideration of an acquirer in a transfer of functions between entities not under common control to which
the Standard of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not Under Commen Control (GRAP 108) applies

. combined instruments that are designated at fair value;

. instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:
- itis acquired orincurred principally for the purpase of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or
- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;
- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at
fair value at initial recognition; and
- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial
instruments at cost, :

23




Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023
(Registration number LIM343)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Accounting Policies

1.8 Financial instruments {continued)
Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at fair value
Other receivables Financial asset measured at fair value

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statermnent of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Payables from exchange transactions Financial lfability measured at amortised cost
Consumer deposits Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categaries:
. Financial instruments at fair value
. Financial instruments at amortised cost
. Financial instruments at cost
Additional text

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review
Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is
recognised in surplus or deficit

For financial assets and financial liabilites measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the financial asset or financial liability is derecagnised or impaired, or through the amortisation process,

Impairment of Financial Instruments

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amorfised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assef's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The carrying amaunt of the asset is reduced directly OR through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Offsetting

A financial asset and a financial lfability shall be offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and anly when, an entity:

* currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

. intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realige the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

*  Additional text
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1.8 Financial instruments {continued)

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity shall not offset the transferred
asset and the associated liability.

Deracognition
The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
. the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived:
. the entity transfers to another barty substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
. the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of awnership of the financial asset, has
transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has ihe practical ability to sell the asset in its

additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity:
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the fransfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred on
the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values
at that date. Any difference betwsen the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised
in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

An entity shall remove a financia liability {or a part of a financial liability} from its statement of financial position when, and only
when, it is extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancefled, expires or waived.

1.9 Statutory receivables
Identification

Statutory receivables are recaivables that arise from legisiation, supporting regulations, or similar means, and raguire
settlement by another entity in cash or another financial asset,

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position.

The cost method is the methed used to account for statutory receivables that requires such receivables to be measured at their
transaction amount, plus any accrued interest or other charges {where applicable) and, less any accumulated impairment
losses and any amounts derecognised.

Nominal interest rate is the inferest rate and/or basis specified in legislation, supporting regulations or similar means.

The fransaction amount for a statutory receivable means the amount specified in, or calculated, levied or charged in
accordance with, leglsiation, supporting regulations, or similar means.

Recognition

The municipality recognises statutory receivables as follows:

. if the transaction is an exchange transaction, using the palicy on Revenue from exchange transactions;

. if the fransaction is a hon-exchange fransaction, using the policy on Revenue from non-exchange transactions
{Taxes and transfers); or

. if the transaction is not within the scape of the policies listed in the above or another Standard of GRAP, the
receivable is recognised when the definition of an asset is met and, when it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the transaction amount can be
measured reliably,

Initial measurement
The municipality initially measures statutory receivables at their transaction amount.

Subsequent measurement
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- 1.9 Statutory receivables (continued)

The municipality measures statutory receivables after inifial recognition using the cost method. Under the cost methed, the
initial measurement of the receivable is changed subsequent to inifial recognition to reflect any:

. interest or other charges that may have accrued on the receivable (where applicable);

. impairment losses; and

*  amounts derecognised,

Accrued interest

Whera the municipality levies interest on the outstanding balance of statutory receivables, it adjusts the transaction amount
after initial recognition to reflect any accrued interest. Accrued interest is calculated using the naminal interest rate.

Interest on statutory receivables is recognised as ravenue in accordance with the pelicy on Revenue from exchange
transactions or the policy on Revenue from non-exchange transactions (Taxes and transfers}, whichever is applicable.

Other charges

Where the municipality is required or entitled in terms of legislation, supporting regulatiens, by-laws or similar means to levy
additianal charges on overdue or unpaid amounts, and such charges are levied, the entity applies the principles as stated in
"Accrued interest” above, as well as the relevant policy on Revenue from exchange transactions or the policy on Revenue from
non-exchange fransactions (Taxes and transfers).

Impairment losses

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or a group of
statutory receivables, may be impairad.

In assessing whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable, or group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the
municipality considers, as a minimum, the following indicators:
. Significant financial difficulty of the debtor, which may be evidenced by an application for debt counselling, business
rescue or an equivalent.
. It is probable that the debtor will enter sequestration, liquidation or other financial re-organisation.
*  Abreach of the terms of the transaction, such as default or delinquency in principal or interest payments (where
levied).
. Adverse changes in international, national or local economic conditions, such as a decline in growth, an increase in
debt levels and unemployment, or changes in migration rates and patterns.

If there is an indication that a statutory receivable, or a group of statutory receivables, may be impaired, the municipality
measures the impairment loss as the difference between the estimated future cash flows and the carrying amount. Where the
carrying amount is higher than the estimated future cash flows, the carrying amount of the statutory receivable, or group of
statutory receivables, is reduced, either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the osses is
recognised in surplus or deficit,

In estimating the future cash flows, an municipality considers both the amount and timing of the cash flows that it will recelve in
future. Consequently, where the effect of the tima value of money is material, the enfity discounts the estimated future cash
flows using a rate that reflects the current risk-free rate and, if applicable, any risks specific fo the statutory receivable, or group
of statutory receivables, for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a statutory receivable is revised if there has been a change in the estimates
used since the last impairment loss was recognised, or to reflect the effect of discounting the estimated cash flows.

Any previausly recognised impairment loss is adjusted either directly or by adjusting the allowance account. The adjustment
does net result in the carrying amount of the statutory receivable or group of statutory receivables exceeding what the carrying
amaunt of the receivable(s) would have been had the impairment loss not been recognised at the date the impairment is
revised. The amount of any adjustment is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Derecoghition
The municipality derecognises a statutery receivable, or a part thereof, when:

. the rights to the cash flows from the receivable are settled, expire or are waived;
. the municipality transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable; or
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1.9 Statutory receivables (continued)

. the municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable, has
transfarred control of the receivable to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the receivable
in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity:

- derecognise the receivable; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer,

The carrying amounts of any stafutory receivables transferred are allocated between the rights or cbligations retained and
those transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the fransfer date. The entity considers whether any newly created
rights and obligations are within the scope of the Standard of GRAP on Financial Instruments or another Standard of GRAP.
Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts derecognised and, those amounts recognised, are
recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

1.10 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings slements, the enlity assesses the classification of each element separately.
Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation,

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease,
if this is practicable to determine; if not, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate shall be used. Any initial diract costs of the
lessee are added to the amount recognised as an asset. .

Subsequent Measurement

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance
of the liability.

Any cantingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.11 Inventories
Initial recognition

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Inventories comprise of current assets held for sale, consumption or distribution during the ordinary course of business.
Inventories are initially recognised at cost. Cost generally refers to the purchase price, plus taxes, transport costs and any other
costs in bringing the inventories to their current location and candition. Where inventory is manufactured, constructed or
produced, the cost includes the cost of labour, materials and overheads used during the manufacturing process. Where
inventory is acquired by the municipality for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed
to be equal to the fair value of the item on the date acquired (including land held for sale),

Subsequent measurement

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value,
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Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
*  distribution at ne charge or for a nominal charge; or
. censumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary caurse of operations less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Current reblacement cost is the cost the municipality incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
Inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services preduced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.

The cost of invenfories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories
having a similar nature and use to the municipality,

When inventeries are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period.in which the
related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recoghised when the goods are distributed, or
related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost
and ail losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss oceurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Redundant and sfow-maving inventories are identified and written down in this way. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in
net realisable value or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the armount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Derecognition

The carrying amount of inventories is recognised as an expense in the period that the inventory was sold, distribufed, written off
or consumed, unless that cost qualifies for capitalisation to the cost of another asset,

1.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly fiquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of mesting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes,

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances, cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less which are available on demand.

Some equity investments are included in cash equivalents when they are, in substance, cash equivalents.

Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand forms an integral part of the entity's cash management activities, and as such
are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

1.13 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.
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1.13 Employee benefits (continued)

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a reiated party (as defined in the Standard
of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or fund
employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation)
and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless either: ‘
*  the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee beneiit
obligations; or
. the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for empioyee benefits already paid.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either;
*  anentity's decision to terminate an employee's employment before the normal retirement date; or
. an employee's decision to accept valuntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee henefits (ather than post-employment benefits and termination benefits) that
are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment.

Composite social security programmes are established by legislation and operate as multi-employer plans to provide post-
employment benefits as well as to provide benefits that are not consideration in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A consfructive obligation is an cbligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice,
published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain
responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge
those responsibilities.
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1.13 Employee benefits {continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be seitled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the refated service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

¢ wages, salarfes and social security contributions:

. short-term compensated absences {such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave)} where the compensation for the
absences s due to be settled within twelve manths after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;

. bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporiing
period in which the employees render the related service: and

. non-manetary benefits {for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for current employees.

Recognition and measurement

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recegnises the undiscounted amount
af short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

. as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

. as an expense, unless another Standard requiras or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employess render services that increase
their entittement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measures the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amaount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date,

The entity recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments,

Bonus, incentive and performance related payments

The entity recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the enfity has a present
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a resuit of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payment

Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans

Post-employment benefit plans are classified as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans, depending on the
economic substance of the plan as derived from its principal terms &nd conditions. In order to be classified as a defined
contribution plan a post-employment benefit plan must require the entity to pay fixed contributions into a separate entity.

Recognition and measurement

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the contribution payable
to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service:
. as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity recognises that excess as an asset
(prepaid expense} fo the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in fufure payments or a
cash refund; and
. as an expense, unlass another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset.

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the fime value
of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the
currency and estimated term of the obligation.
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Actuarial assumptions
Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible,

Financial assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the period over which the obligations are to
be settled.

The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations (both funded and unfunded) reflect the time value of money.
The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of maoney is consistent with the cuirency
and estimated term of the post-ernployment benefit obligations.

Post-employment benefit abligations are measured on a basis that reflects:

. estimated future salary increases;

*  the benefils set out in the terms of the plan {or resulting from any constructive obligation that goes beyond those
terms) at the reperting date; and

. estimated future changes in the level of any state benefits that affect the benefits payable under a defined benefit
plan, if, and only if, either:

*  those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or

. past history, or other reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefits will change in some predictable manner,
for example, in line with future changes in general price levels or general salary levels.

Assumptions about medical costs take account of estimated future changes in the cost of medical services, resulting from both
inflation and specific changes in medical costs.

Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits may include, for example:
. long-term compensated absences such as long service or sabbatical leave;
. other long service benefits;
. long-term disability benefits;
. bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable twelve months or mere after the end of the reparting
period in which the employees render the related service; :
*  deferred compensation paid twelve months or more after the end of the reporting period in which it is earned; and

=  compensation payable by the entity until an individual enters new eamployment.
Recognition and measurement
The amount recognised as a liability for other long-term employee benefits shall be the net total of the following amounts:

= the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date
*  minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets {if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly
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Other post retirement obligations

The municipality provides post-retirement health care benefits, housing subsidies and gratuities upen retirement to some
retirees,

The entitlement to post-retirement health care benefits is based on the emplayee remaining in service up to retirement age and
the completion of a minimum servics period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the peried of employment.
Independent qualified actuaries carry out valuations of these obligations. The municipality also provides a gratuity and housing
subsidy on retirement to certain employees. An annual charge to income is made to cover both these liabilities,

The amount recognised as a liability for other long-tarm employee benefits is the net total of the following amounts:
*  the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date;
. minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly.

The entity shall recognise the net total of the following amounts as expense or revenue, except to the extent that another
Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset: ]

current service cost;

interest cost;

the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement right recognised as an asset;

actuarial gains and losses, which shall all be recognised immediateiy;

past service cost, which shall all be recognised immediately; and

the effect of any curtailments or sefiements.

1.14 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
*  the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
= itis probable that an oulflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and
*  areliable estimate can be made of the obligation,

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a pravision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to sattle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by anather party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be receivad if the municipality
seflfes the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset, The amount recognised for the reimbursement does
not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer prabable that an outflow of resources embodying ecanomic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each pericd to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A proviston is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus,

If an entity has a centract that is onerous, the present obligation {net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.
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A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:

. has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concerned;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being
terminated,
- the expenditures that will be undertaken: and
- when the pian will be implemented; and

. has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:
. necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
. not associated with the ongoing activities of the municipality

Na obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the municipality is committed to the sale
or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are
subsequently measured at the higher of;

. the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

*  the amountinitially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 47.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer o make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due ih accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

The municipality recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that-an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications that
an outflow of resources may be probable are:
* financial difficulty of the debtor;
= defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repaymants by the debtor;
*  breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the
ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and
. a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on
the ability of entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee is received by the municipality for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan
commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date.
Where a fee is charged and the municipality considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, a municipality
recognises the obligation at the higher of;
. the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
and
. the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.
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Decommissioning, restoration and similar liability

Changes in the measurement of an existing decommissioning, restoration and similar liability that result from changes in the
estimated timing or amount of the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential required to settle the
abligation, or a change in the discount rate, is accounted for as follows:

if the related asset is measured using the cost model:
*  changes in the liability is added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset in the current period.
. the amount deducted from the cost of the asset does not exceed its carrying amount, If a decrease in the liability

1.36.

The adjusted depreciable amount of the asset is depreciated over its useful life, Therefore, once the related assef has reached
the end of its useful ife, all subsequent changes in the liability is recognised in suiplus or deficit as they aceur. This applies
under both the cost model and the revaluation model.

The periedic unwinding of the discount is recognised in surplus or deficit as a finance cost as it oceurs.
1.15 Commitments

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself fo future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of cash. .

Commitments for which disclosure s hecessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the finansial
statements, if both the following criteria are met:
*  Contracts shouid be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost {for example, contracts for computer or
building maintenance services); and
. Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity — therefore salary
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

Commitment is the amount that has been committed but not yet incurred. It is the difference between the contracted amount
and the actual expenditure as at year end. This amount is disclosed on the Notes to the Annual Financial Statement

1.16 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gress inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners, ’

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directiy
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets} to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm's length transaction. .

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

The amount of revenue arising on a transaction which is statutory (non-contractual) in nature is usually measured by reference
to the relevant legislation, regulation or similar means. The fee structure, tariffs or calculation basis specified in legislation,
regulation or similar means is used to determine the amount of revenue that should be recognised. This amount represents the
fair value, on initial measurement, of the consideration recejved or receivable for revenue that arises from a statutory {non-
contractual) arrangement (see the accounting policy on Statutory Receivables).
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1.16 Revenue from exchange transactions {continued)
Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

. the municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the municipality retains naither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control gver the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic banefits or setvice potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
municipality; and

= the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

When the outcoms of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The aufcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the foliowing conditions are satisfied:

. the amount of revenue can be measurad reliably;

*  itis probable that the econamic beneiits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the

municipality; '
. the stage of completion of the transaction at the reparting date can be measured reliably; and
*  the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight-line basfs over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of
completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the
significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Interest, royalties and dividends

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is
recognised when: i
. It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
municipality, and
*  The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised using the effective interest rate methed for financial instruments, and using the nominal interest rate
method for statutory receivables. Interest levied on transactions arising from exchange or non-exchange transactions is
classified based on the nature of the underlying transaction,

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is
performed,

1.17 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of econamic benefits or service potential received and receivable by a municipality, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service petential embodied in
the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future sconomic benefits or service potential must be
refurned to the transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the municipality can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can
exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity recefves assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in
exchange.
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1.17 Revenue from non-exchange transactions {continued)

Fines are econamic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as determined by a court or other law
enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws or regulations.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, a municipality
either receives value from another municipality without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to
another municipality without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used,
but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required fo be returned to the transferor if not deployed
as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a
transferred asset by entities external to the reporting municipality.

Taxes are economic benefits or service petential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance with laws and or
regulations, established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines or other penalties imposed for breaches
of the law.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.
Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liahility is alse recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the municipality satisfies a present abligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a nen-
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
municipality.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municipality recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent
to the amount of the asset measured at its fair valie as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a
liability. Where a liability is requirad to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle
the obligation at the reporting date, .and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a
liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs ar a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the
liability is recognised as revenue.

Receivables that arise from statutory (non-contractual) arrangements are initially measured in accordance with this accounting
policy, as well as the accounting policy on Statutory Receivables. The entity applies the accounting palicy on Statutory
Receivables for the subsequent measurement, derecognition, presentation and disclosure of stafutory receivables.

interest is recognised using the effective interast rate method for financial instruments, and using the nominal interest rate
method for statutory receivables. Interest levied on transactions arising from exchange or non-exchange transactions is
classified based on the nature of the underlying transaction.
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1.17 Revenue from Non-exchange transactions {continueq)

Property rates

basis of evidence avaijlable atthe time of initial recognifion, which includes, but is not limitegd to, disclosure of the taxable event
by the taxpayer.

The taxabie event for property tax is the passing of the date an which the tax js levied, or the pericd for which the tax is levied, if
the tax is levied on g periodic basis, ’ :

Transfers

Apart from Services in kind, which are hot recognised, the municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the
transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recegnition as an agset.

The municipality recdgnises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and
satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset,

Transferred assets are measured at their fajr valte as at the date of acquisition.

Debt forgiveness and assumption of liabilities

The municipality recognise revenue in respect of debt forgivensss when the farmer debt ng longer meets the definition of a

liability or safisfies the criteria for recognition ag a liability, proviged that the debt forgiveness does not satisfy the definition of a
rs.

contribution from owne,

Revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured af the carrying amount of debi forgiven,

Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind

Gifts and donations, including goads in kind, are fecognised as assets ang revenue when it is probaple that the futurs
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the municipality and the fair value of the assets ¢an be measuyred reliably.
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1.17 Revenue from non-exchange transactions {(continued)

Services inkind

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the municipality recognise services in-kind that are significant to its operations andfor
service delivery objectives as assets and recognise the related revenue when it is probable that the future economic benefits or
service potential will flow to the municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Where services in-kind are not significant to the municipality's operations and/or service delivery objectives and/or do not
satisfy the criteria for recognition, the municipality disclose the nature and type of services in-kind received during the reporting
period. .

The municipality recognise services in-kind that are significant to fts operations and/or service delivery objectives as assets and
recognise the related revenue when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the
municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Where services in-kind are not significant to the fnunicipality's operations and/or service delivery objectives andfor do not
satisfy the criteria for recognition, the municipality disclose the nature and type of services in-kind received during the reporting
period.

1.18 Turnover

Turnover comprises of sales to customers and service rendered to customers. Turnover is stated at the invoice amount and is
exclusive of value-added taxation.

1.19 Investment income

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

1.20 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the periad in which they are incurred,

1.21 Accounting by principals and agents

[dentification

An agent s an entity that has been directed by another entity (a principal}, through a binding arrangement, to undertake
transactions with third parties on behalf of the principal and for the benefit of the principal.

A principal is an entity that directs another entity (an agent), through a binding arangement, to undertake transactions with
third parties on its behalf and for its own benefit.

A principal-agent arrangement results from a binding arrangement in which one entity (an agent), undertakes transactions with
third parties on behalf, and for the benefit of, another entity {the principal).

Identifying whether an entity is a principal or an agent

When fhe municipality is party to a principal-agent arrangement, it assesses whether it is the principal or the agent in
accounting for revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilities that result from transactions with third parties undertaken in
terms of the arrangement.

The assessment of whether a municipality is a principal or an agent requires the municipality to assess whether the
transactions it undertakes with third parties are for the benefit of anather enfity or far its own benefit.
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1.21 Accounting by principals and agents (continued)
Binding arrangement

The municipality assesses whether it is an agent or a principal by assessing the rights and obligations of the various parties
established in the binding arrangement.

Where the terms of a binding arrangement are modified, the parfies to the arrangement re-assess whether they actas a
principal or an agent.

Assessing which entity benefits from the transactions with third parties

When the municipality in a principal-agent arrangement concludes that it undertakes transactions with third parties for the
benefit of another entity, then it is the agent. If the municipality concludes that it is not the agent, then it is the principal in
the transactions,

The municipality is an agent when, in relation to transactions with third parties, all three of the following criteria are present:
. It does not have the power to determine the significant terms and conditions of the transaction.
. It dees not have the ability to use all, or substantially all, of the resources that result from the transaction for its
own benefit.
. Itis not exposed to variability in the results of the transaction.

Where the municipality has been granted specific powers in terms of legislation to direct the terms and conditiens of
particular transactions, it is not required to consider the criteria of whether it does not have the power to determine the
significant terms and conditions of the transaction, to concluds that Is an agent. The municipality applies judgement in
determining whether such powers exist and whether they are relevant in assessing whether the municipality is an agent.

Recognition

The municipality, as a principal, recognises revenue and expenses that arise from transactions with third parties in a
principal-agent arrangement in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

The municipality, as an agent, recognises only that portion of the revenue and expenses it receives or incurs in executing
the fransactions on behalf of the principal in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.,

The municipality recognises assets and liabilities arising from principal-agent arrangements in accordance with the
requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

1.22 Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

When the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements is amended, comparative amounts are reclassified,
unless the reclassification is impracticable. When comparative amounts are reclassified, the following is disclosed:

= the nature of the reclassification; i

*  the amount of each item or class of items that is reclassified: and

*  the reason for the reclassification.

When it is impracticable to reclassify comparative amounts, the following is disclosed:
. the reason for not reclassifying the amounfs; and
*  the nature of the adjustments that would have been made if the amounts had bean reclassified.

Where material accounting errors have been identified in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is
practicable, and the prier year comparatives are restated accordingly, where there has been a change in accounting policy in
the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparafives are restated
accordingly.

1.23 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means:
. averspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
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1.23 Unauthorised expenditure (continued)
. expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with
the purpose of the main division.

Unauthorised expenditure is accounted forin line with all relating requirements, including, but not limited to, ruling Legislafion,
Regulations, Frameworks, Circulars, Instruction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidelines etc, {as applicable).

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has been budgeted, expenditure that is not in terms of the conditions of an
allocation received from another sphere of government, municipality or organ of state and expenditure in the form of a grant

1.24 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made ir vain and would have been avoided had reasonahle care been
exercised,

Fruitiess and wasteful expenditure is accounted for in fine with all reiating requirements, including, but not limited to, ruling
Legislation, Regulations, Frameworks, Circulars, Instruction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidelines ete. (as applicable).

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance,

1.25 Irregular expenditure

irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act {Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act {Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in centravention of the
sconomic entity's supply chain managetrient policy irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. lrregular
expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Irregular expenditure is accounted for in line with alil relating requirements, including, but not limited to, ruling Legislation,
Regulations, Frameworks, Girculars, Instruction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidslines etc. (as applicable).

1.26 Segment information

A segment is an activity of an entity; ‘
. that generates economic benefits or service potential (including economic benefits or service potential relating to
transactions between activities of the same entity);
*  whose results are regularly reviewed by management to make decisions about resources fo be allocated to that
activity and in assessing its performance; and
. for which separate financial information is available.

Reportable segments are the actyal segments which are reported on in the segment report. They are the segments identified
above or alternativaly an aggregation of two or more of those segments where the aggragation criteria are met,
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1.26 Segment Information {continued)

Measurement

egment ife
about allocating resources to the segment and assessing its performance, Adjustments and eliminations made in Preparing the
entity’s financiaj statements angd allocations of 'évenues and expenses are included in determining reperted segment surplus or
deficit only i they are included in the measure of the segments surplus or deficit that is Used by management. Similarly, only
those assets and liabilities that ara included in the measures of the segment's assets and segment's liabflities that are ysed by
Management are reported for that segment. i amounts are allocated to reported segment surplus or dsficit, assets or liabilities,
those amounts are allocated on g reasonabie basis.

accordance with the Mmeasurement principles most consistent with those used in Measuring the corresponding amounts In the
entity’s financia| statements,

1.27 Budget information .

Municipality are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget autharisations (or equivalent), which
is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or simijlar.

General purpose financial reporting by municipality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

ohjectives,
The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2022/_07!01 to 2023/06/30,

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore comparison with the budgeted
amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

Presentation of g comparison of the budget amounts for which it is held publicly accountable and actual amounts js presented
as a separate additiona] financial statement. The comparison of budget and actuai amounts is present separately for each level
of legislative oversight:
. the approved and final budget amounts:;
. the actual amounts on a comparable basis: and
*  byway of note disclosure, an explanation of mataria) differences betwean the budget for which the entity is held
pbublicly accauntable and actual amounts, unless such explanation is included in other public documents issued in
conjunction with the financial statements, and a cross reference to those documents is made in the notes,

1.28 Related parties

A related Party is a person or an entity with the ability fo control or Jointly control the other barty, or exercise significant influence
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint contral,

Control is the power to govern tha financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Joint control is the agreed sharing of control Over an activity by g binding arrangement, and exists onhly when the strategic
financial and Operating decisions refating to the activity require the Unanimous consent of the parties sharing controf (the
venturers).

Related party transaction s a transfar of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party,
regardiess of whether a price is charged.
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1.28 Related parties (continued)

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipality, including
those charged with the governance of the municipality in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to
perform such functions,

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that
person in their dealings with the municipality,

The municipality is exempt from disclosure requirements in relation to related party transactions if that transaction occurs within
normal supplier and/or client/recipiant relationships on ferms and conditions no more or less favolrabie than those which it is
reasonable to expect the municipality to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or persan in the Same circumstances

and terms ang conditions are within the hommal operating Parameters established by that reporting entity's legal mandate.

. The aggregate remuneration of key management personnel and the number of individuals, determined on a full-time

1.29 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourabie, that occur between the reporting date and the
date when the financiai statements are authorised for issue, Two types of events can be identified:
. those that provide evidence of conditions that existeqd at the feporting date (adjusting events after the feporting date):
d

*  those that are indicafive of conditions that arose after the reporting dafe (non-adjusting events after the reporting

The municipality will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such esfimate
cannot be made in respect of all materia] non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure coyld influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

1.30 Value Added Tax

The municipality applies the Payment basis for VAT Purposes as per the Value-Added Tax Act. Output tax js paid to SARS as
and when the purchase censideration are received ang input will be claimed as and when payment |s made.

VAT is accounted for on an acerual basis in the annual financia| statements,

The VAT accruai account does not fepresent amounts to be received or paig, byt rather amounts that are associated with
transactions that are yet to be settled, There is no money to be feceived or paid to SARS for these amounts as yet. VAT input
accruals js recognised as receivaple from exchange transactions. VAT output accrual is recognised as payables from
exchange transaction,

1.31 Contingent Liabilities

gation that arises from past events, and whoge existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain futyre events not wholly within the control of the entity; or(b) a present
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:(i) it is not prabable that an outfiow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to satile the obligation; or(ii} the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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1.32 General Expenses

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period in the form of outflows ar
consumption of assets or incurrences of liabilities that result in decreases in net assets, other than those relating to
distributions to owners.

Recognition and measurement

Expenses are recognised on an accrual basis,

This means a basis of accounting under which transactions are recognised when they occur (and not only when cash orits
equivalent is received or paid). Therefore, the transactions are recorded in the accounting records and recognised in the
financial statements of the periods to which they relate,

1.33 Accumulated Surplus

The municipality's surplus or deficit for the year is accounted in the accumulated surplus reserve in the statement of changes in
net assets.

1.34 Long term debtors

Long term debtors are debtors that are receivable for a period exceeding 12 months from year end. These debtors arise from
the payment agreement between the customer and the Municipality.

1.35 Errors

A prior period error is corrected by retrospective restatement except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine either the
period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error.

When it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects of an error on comparative information for one or more prior
periods presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets are restated for the earliest period for which
refrospective restatement is practicable {which may be the current period).

When it is impracticable to determine the cumulative effect, at the beginning of the current pericd, of an etror on all prior
periods, the comparative information is restated to correct the error prospectively from the earliest date practicable.

1.36 Impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial returmn means that
positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset,

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recagnition
of the loss of the asset's future ecenomic benefits or service potential through depreciation {amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets used with the objective of generating a commersial return
that generates cash inflows frem continuihg use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax
expense.

Depreciation (Amoitisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unitis the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:
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1.36 Impairment of cash-generating assets {continued)
. the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or
. the number of production or similar units expected te be obtained from the asset by the municipality.

Judgements made by management in applying the criteria to designate assets as cash-generating assets or non-cash-
generating assets, are as follows:
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Figures in Rand 2023 2022

2. Changesin accounting policy

An accounting policy is changed only if the change:
. is required by a Standard of GRAF; or
. results in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions,
other events or conditions on the entify's financial position, financial performance or cash flows.

A change in accounting policy is applied refrospectively, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine either the
period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. When it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects
of changing an accounting policy on comparative information for one or more prior periods preserted, the entity shail apply the
new accounting policy to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as at the beginning of the earliest period for which
retrospective application is practicable, which may be the current period, and shail make a corresponding adjustment to the
opening baiance of each affected component of net assets for that period.

When it is impracticable to determine the cumulative effect, at the beginning of the current period, of applying a new accounting
policy to all prior periods, the entity shall adjust the comparative information to apply the new accounting policy prospectively
from the earliest date practicable.

3. New standards and interpretations
3.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The municipality has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory
for the municipality's accounting perieds beginning on or after 01 July 2023 or later periods:

Guideline: Guideline on Accounting for Landfill Sites

The objective of this guideline: The Constitution of South Africa, 1996 {Act No. 108 of 1996) (the constitution), gives local
government the executive authority over the functions of cleaning, refuse removal, refuse dumps and solid waste disposal.
Even though waste disposal activities are mainly undertaken by municipalities, other public sector entities may also he

It covers: Overview of the legislative requirements that govern landfill sites, Accounting for land, Accounting for the landfill
site asset, Accounting for the provision for rehabilitation, Closure, End-use and monitoring, Other considerations, and
Annexures with Terminoclogy & References to pronguncements used in the Guideline.

The effective date of the guideline is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2089.

The municipality expects to adopt the guideling for the first time in the 2098/2099 annual financial statements.
Itis unlikely that the standard wi!l have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements.
GRAP 25 (as revised): Employee Benefits

Background

The Board issued the Standard of GRAP on Empioyee Benefits (GRAP 25) in Novernber 2009, GRAP 25 was based on the
International Public Sector Accounting Standard on Employee Benefits (IPSAS 25) effective at that time. However, GRAP
25 was modified in some respects where the Board decided the requirements of the International Accotnting Standard on
Employee Benefits (IAS® 19} were more appropriate. Specifically, the Board:
*  Eliminated the corridor method and reguired recognition of actuarial gains and losses in full in the year that they
arise.
. Reguired the recognition of past service costs in the year that a plan is amended, rather than on the basis of
whether they are vested or unvested.

45




Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023
{Registration number LIM343)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

3. New standards and interpretations {continued)

Since 2009, the International Accounting Standards Board® has made several changes to JAS 18, including changes to the
recognition of certain benefits, and where these changes are recognised. The IPSASB made similar changes to its standard
and as a result of the extent of changes, issued IPSAS 39 on Employee Benefits to replace IPSAS 25 in 2016.

When the Board consulted locally on the proposed amendments to IPSAS 25 in 2018, stakeholders welcomed the
amendments to align IPSAS 25 to IAS 19 and supported the changes that resulted in IPSAS 38,

In developing GRAP 25, the Board agreed to include the guidance from the IFRS Interpretation on IAS 19 — The Limiton a
Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction (IFRIC 14®) partly in GRAP 25 and partly in
the Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP on The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction (IGRAP 7).

Key amendments to GRAP 25

The Board agreed to align GRAP 25 with IPSAS 39, but that iocal issues and the local environment need to be considered.
As a result of this decision, there are areas where GRAP 25 deparis from the requirements of IPSAS 39. The Board's
decisions to depart are expiained in the basis for conclusions.

The amendments to GRAP 25 are extensive and mostly affect the accounting for defined benefit plans. A new renumbered
Standard of GRAP (e.g. GRAP 39) will not be issued, but rather a new version of the current GRAP 25,

The effective date of these revisions have not yet been set. 01 April 2099.
The municipality expects to adopt the revisions for the first time in the 2098/2099 annual financial statements.
It is unlikely that the revisions will have a material impact on the municipality’s annual financial statements.
iGRAP 7 {as revised): Limit on defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction
Background
The Board issued the Standard of GRAP on Employee Benefits (GRAP 25) in November 2009, GRAP 25 was based on the
International Public Sector Accounting Standard on Employee Benefits (IPSAS 25) effective at that time. However, GRAP
25 was madified in some respects where the Board decided the requirements of the International Accounting Standard on
Employee Benefits (IAS® 19) were more apprapriate. Specifically, the Board:
. Eliminated the corridor method and required recegnition of actuarial gains and losses in full in the year that they
arise.
. Required the recognition of past service costs in the year that a plan is amended, rather than on the basis of
whether they are vested or unvested.
Since 2009, the International Accounting Standards Board® has made several changes to JAS 19, including changes to the
recognition of certain benefits, and where these changes are recognised. The IPSASB made simiiar changes to its standard
and as a result of the extent of changes, issuad IPSAS 39 on Employee Benefits to replace IPSAS 25 in 2016.

When the Board censulted locally on the proposed amendments to IPSAS 25 in 2018, stakeholders welcomed the
amendments to align IPSAS 25 to IAS 19 and supported the changes that resulted in IPSAS 39.

In developing GRAP 25, the Board agreed to include the guidance from the IFRS Interpretation on IAS 19 ~ The Limiton a
Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and thelir Interaction (IFRIC 14® ) paitly in GRAP 25 and partly in
the Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP on The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction (IGRAP 7).

The effective date of these revisions have not yet been set. 01 April 2089,

The municipality expects to adopt the revisions for the first time in the 20098/2099 01 April 2099,

It is unlikely that the revisions will have a material impact on the municipality’s annual financial statements.

GRAP 104 (as revised): Financial Instruments
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3.  New standards and Interpretations (continued)

Following the global financial crisis, a number of concerns wers raised about the accounting for financial instruments. This
included that (a) information on credit losses and defauiis on financial assets was received tao late to enable proper
decision-making, () using fair value in certain instances was inappropriate, and (¢) some of the existing accounting
requirements were seen as too rules based. As a result, the International Accounting Standards Board® amended its
existing Standards fo deal with these Issues. The 1ASB issued IFRS® Standard on Financial Instruments (IFRS 9) in 2009
to address many of the concerns raised. Revisions were also made to IAS® on Financial Instruments; Presentation and the
IFRS Standard® on Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The IPSASE issued revised International Public Sector Accounting
Standards in June 2018 g0 as to align them with the equivalent iIFRS Standards. '

The revisions better align the Standards of GRAP with recent international developments. The amendments resulf in better
information available to make decisions about financial assets and their recoverability, and more transparent information on
financial liabilities.

The most significant changes to the Standard affect:
*  Financial guarantse contracts issued

Loan commitments issued

Classification of financial assets

Amortised cost of financial assets

Impaiment of financial assets

Disclosures

* & 9 2 =

The effective date of the revisions is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The municipality expects to adopt the revisions for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the revisions.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements.

IGRAP 21: The Effect of Past Decisions on Materiality

Background

The Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (GRAP 3) applies to the
selection of accounting policies. Entities apply the accounting policies set out in the Standards of GRAP, except when the
effect of applying them is immaterial. This means that entities couid apply alternative accounting treatments to immaterial
items, transactions or events (hereafter called “items™.

The Board received questions from entities asking whether past decisions to not apply the Standards of GRAP to
immaterial items effect future reporting periods. Entities observed that when they applied alternative accounting treatments
to items in previous reperting periods, they kept historical records on an ongaing basis of the affected items. This was done
s0 that they could assess whether applying these alternative treatments meant that the financial statements became
materially "misstated” over time. I the effect was considered material, retrospective adjustments were often made.

This Interpretation explains the nature of past materiality decisions and their potential effect on current and subsequent
reporting periods.

iIGRAP 21 addresses the following twa issues:
. Do past decisions about materiality affect subsequent reporting pericds?
. Is applying an altemnative accounting treatment a departure from the Standards of GRAP or an error?
The effective date of these interpretation have not yet been set. 01 April 2023.
The municipality expacts to adopt the interpretation for the first time in the 202212023 01 April 2023,
Itis unlikely that the interpretation will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements.

GRAP 1 (amended): Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to this Standard of GRAP, are primarily drawn from the IASB's Amendments fo IAS 1.

47




Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023

(Registration number LIM343)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

3. New standards and interpretations {continued)
Summary of amendments are:
Materiality and aggregation
The amendments clarify that:
=  information should not be obscured by aggregating or by providing immaterial information;
- materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial statements: and
. even when a Standard of GRAP requires a specific disclosure, materiality considerations apply.
Statement of financial position and statement of financial perfermance

The amendments clarify that the list of line items to be presented in these statements can be disaggregated and
aggregated as relevant and addifional guidance on subtotals in these statements.

Notes structure

The amendments add examples of possible ways of ordering the notes to clarify that understandability and comparability
should be considered when determining the order of the notes and to demanstrate that the notes need not be presented in
the order listed in GRAP 1.

Disclosure of accounting policies

Remove guidance and examples with regards to the identification of significant accounting policies that were perceived as
being potentially unhelpful.

A municipality applies judgement based on past experience and current facts and circumstances.
The effective date of this amendment is for years beginning on or aiter 01 April 2025.
The municipality expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2024/2025 armual financial statements.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipality's annual financial statements.
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Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023
(Registration number LIM343} :
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023 2022

4.  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment

Expenditure incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment

included in Statement of Financial Performance

Maintenance of Buildings and Facilities 3080443 2103 465

Maintenance of Equipment 4101 033 4020812

Maintenance of Unspecified Assets 87979230 21610750
105160 706 27 735 027

A register centaining the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for

inspection at the registered office of the municipality.
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Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023

{Registration number LIM343)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023 2022
6. Inventorigs
Consumable stores 9927 918 11 457 277
Unsold Properties Hald for Resale 18 414 511 18 715 508
28342429 30172785
Inventories (write-downs) - {150 297)
28 342 429 30021 788

The total value of the write-dawn is shown on the face of the Statement of Financial Performance as R as of 30 June 2023

(2022: R150 997).

Inventory pledged as security

No inventory have been pledged as security.

7. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Gross balances

Consumer debfors - Rates 314703 968 287 443 127
Traffic fines 34 175 863 33 517 663
348 879 831 320 960 790

Less: Allowance for impairment
Consumer debtors - Rates

(305 272 542) (269 557 038)

Traffic fines (32808 828) (32 176 956)
(338 081 370) {301 733 994)
Net balance
Cansumer debtors - Rates 9431 426 17 886 089
Traffic fines 1367035 1340 707
10 798 461 19 226 796
Rates
Current (0 -30 days) 14 210 480 8 135692
31 -60days 6 296 070 6 454 782
61 - 90 days 6 046 167 6234776
91 - 120 days 5956 675 6 167 461
121 - 365 days 282 194 576 280 450 415
314 703 968 287 443 126
Traffic fines
Current (0 -30 days) 86 450 58 900
31 - 80 days 186 000 87 300
61 - 90 days 278 550 278 750
91-120 days 265 800 283 000
121 - 385 days 33 359 063 32 829713
34 175 863 33 517 663
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Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023

(Registration number LIiM343)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023 2022
7. Receivables from non-exchange transactions (continued)
Summary of debtors by customer classification
Consumers {residential) ’
Current (0 -30 days) 6 937 582 3045728
31 - 60 days 2 984 457 2 950 258
61 - 90 days 2 865015 2 897 030
91 -120 days 2815408 2858729
121 - 365 days 157 724 865 154 711 678
173 307 334 166 463 423
Industrial/ commercial
Current (C -30 days) 4474520 2 822 867
31-60days 1267 310 1373734
61 - 90 days 1200 331 1293516
91 - 120 days 1175 570 1196 803
121 - 365 days 48647 735 46 687 301
56 765466 53 374 221
National and provincial government
Current (0 -30 days) 2798 371 2287 098
31 - 60 days 2084 303 2130791
61 - 90 days 1980 821 2044 231
91 - 120 days 1 965 697 21119829
121 - 365 days 75821976 59051 436
84 631168 67 605 485
Total
Current {0 -30 days) 14 210 480 8 135692
31 -60 days 6296 070 6 454 782
61 - 90 days 6 046 167 6234 776
91 - 120 days 5 956 675 6 167 461
121 - 365 days 282194576 260450 415
314703968 287 443128
Less: Allowance for impainnent (305 272 542} (269 557 038)
9431426 17 886 088

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment
Balance at beginning of the year
Contributions to allowance

(301 733 994)
(36 347 376)

(242 179 675)
(59 554 319)

(338 081 370)

(301 733 994)
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7. Receivables from non-exchange transactions {continued)
Statutory receivables general information
Transaction{s) arising from statute

Traffic fines are governed by Administrative Adjudication of Road Traffic Offences Act, No. 4B of 1098 (AARTQY) and National
Road Traffic Act, No. 93 of 1996 of South Africa, hence this is therefore recognised as a statutory receivable. The receivable is
calculated by determining the value of the fine to be paid on initial recognition, and accounting for subsequent measurement by
taking into account reductions and discounts made to the value of the fine payable in terms of the court of law. No interest is
charged on cutstanding fines, and any additional penalties applied by the court is paid by the offender to the court directly, and
is therefere not considered to be revenue for the municipality.

Property rates is levied in terms of the Municipal Property Rates Act 6 of 2004, hence this is therefore recognised as a statutory
recelvable. The receivable is calculated by applying the Council approved rates randages against the valuation of individual
properties within the municipality jurisdiction. Council approved rebates and exemptions are further applied to reduce the
receivable,

Basis used to assess and test whether a statutory receivable is impaired

Provision for credit losses is potential losses that the municipality might experiencs due to credit risk. An estimated amount to
be fost is calculated and is treatad as an expense on the municipality's financial statements. Non-payment of debt would lead
to an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential in settlement regardless of the future actions of
the municipality.

The estimate were determined by the judgment of the management of the municipality, supplemented by experience of past
practices and statistics in relation to uncollectable debt. The effects of the time value of maney has been ignored due to the
fact that the debt is immediately payable.

In assessing whether statufory receivables are impairad, management assessed whether there are any indications that:
(a) Individually significant receivables are impaired; and/or
(b} Groups of similar, individually insignificant, receivables are impaired.

The total debtors were separated into groups of similar receivables with similar risk profiles and assessed for impairment,

The grouping was based on the type of debtor, i.e. government, business, residential, employees and councillors, exhibiting
similar characteristics which provide information about the possible collectability of the amounits owing to the municipality.

In estimating the future cash flows, management considered both the amount and timing of the cash flows that it will receive in
future. In'line with par 12 of the Credit Control Policy, the municipality does nat see itself as a credit pravision institution and
hence the effect of the time value of money is not considered as all outstanding amounts are immediately payable.

In determining the amount impaired, management estimates the cash fiows that it expects to collect based on facts and
circumstances at the reporting date. '

The future cash flows of a group of receivables that were individually or collectively evaluated for impairment were estimated
using historical experience. For this purpose, management adopted the payment pattern of each recaivable over the previous
12 months as the most appropriate methodology as it reflects the amount likely to be collected in future.

The impairment loss was measured as the difference betwaen the estimated future cash flows and the carrying amount. Where
the carrying amount is higher than the estimated future cash flows, the carrying amount of the receivable, or group of statutory
receivables, shall be reduced, either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be
recognised in surplus or deficit.

Impairment of trafiic fine debtors were based only on historical payment trend of total debt,

Included in consumer debtors - Rates is fines for llfegal use of land which we could not be separated due to mSCOA mapping
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8. Receivables from exchange fransactions
Gross balances
Accrued Interest 702 144 172 586
Other debtors 2228354 2 553 951
Sundry debtors 28612383 2502 521
Vat input accrual 8157 714 11 442 677
Consumer debtors - Refuse 147 756 860 137 249 980
Consumer debtors - Service charges 88781 315 82 890 206
250 238770 236 811 921
Leés: Allowance for impairment
Other debtors (2132 217) -
Sundry debtors (2 631 736) -
Consumer debtors - Refuse (143 389 124) (128 709 629}
Consumer debtors - Service charges (85775 193) ({77732 380)
(233 835 270) (206 442 009)
Net balance
Accrued Interest 702 144 172 586
Other debtors 89 137 2 553 951
Sundry debtors 80 847 2502 521
Vat input accrual 8157 714 11 442 677
Consumer debtors - Refuse 4 367 736 8 540 351
Consumer debtors - Service charges 3006122 5157 826
16 403 500 30 369 912
Sundry debtors
Current (0 -30 days) 101 946 369 009
31 -60 days 34134 42 855
61 - 90 days 59 815 77 252
91 - 120 days 29 094 75 267
121 - 365 days 289 443 548 145
> 365 days 2 097 951 1389903
2612383 2502521
Refuse
Current {0 -30 days) 3443 940 2 898 037
31 - 60 days 2730938 2 660 630
61 - 90 days 2 B30 262 2578127
91 - 120 days 2576524 2537 288
121 - 365 days 136 375196 126 575 898
147 756 860 137 249 980
Service charges .
Current {0 -30 days) 1337 851 {4 396 531)
31 - 60 days 619 704 1044 912
61 -90 days 621 182 981 631
91 - 120 days 731017 850 835
121 - 365 days 85 471 561 84 409 360
88781315 82890 207
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8. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)
Summary of debtors by customer classification
Consumers (residential)
Current (0 -3¢ days) 3624224 (2202811)
31- 60 days 2519 944 3561 331
61 - 90 days 2 468 502 2 649 459
91 - 120 days 2 442 456 2522385
121 - 365 days 185 8689 557 178 088 887
196 924 683 185 519 251
Industrial/ commercial
Current {0 -30 days) 943 488 613 969
31 -60 days 709 734 790 734
61 - 90 days 669 452 749 272
91 - 120 days 767 378 650 558
121 - 365 days 31082765 27 463 530
34182817 30 268 063
National and provincial government
Current (0 -30 days) 214 079 90 349
31-60days 120 964 140 404
61 - 90 days 113 490 113 354
91 - 120 days 97 706 109 263
121 - 365 days 4884 434 3 899 505
5430 673 4 352 875
Total
Current (0 -30 days) 4781791 {1498 494)
31 - 60 days 3 350 641 3705542
61 - 90 days 3251444 3 559 758
91 - 120 days 3 307 540 3388123
121 - 365 days 221 848 757 210985 257
236 538173 220140 186
Less: Allowance for impaimment (220 164 317) (206 442 009)
7373856 13698177
Reconciliation of allowance for impairment
Balance at beginning of the year (206 442 009) (411 243 3986)
Contributions to allowance (27 393 261) 204 801 387
{233 835 270) (206 442 009)
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8. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)
Receivables from exchange general information
Basis used to assess and test whether receivables from exchange transactions is impaired

Provision for credit losses is potential losses that the municipality might experience due to credit risk. An estimated amount to
be lost is calculated and is treated as an expense on the municipality’s financial statements. Non-payment of debt would lead
to an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential in settlement regardless of the future actions of
the municipality.

The estimate were determined by the judgment of the management of the municipality, supplemented by experience of past
practices and statistics in refation to uncollectable debt. The effects of the time value of money has been ignored due to the
fact that the debt is immediately payable.

In assessing whether statutory receivables are impaired, management assessed whether there are any indications that:
(a) Individually significant receivables are impaired; and/or

{b) Groups of similar, individually insignificant, receivables are impaired.

The total debtors were separated into groups of similar receivables with similar risk profiles and assessed for impairment.

The grouping was based on the type of debtor, i.e. government, business, residential, employees and councillors, exhibiting
similar characteristics which provide information about the possible collectability of the amounts owing to the municipality.

In estimating the future cash flows, management considered both the amount and timing of the cash flows that it will receive in
future. In line with par 12 of the Credit Control Policy, the municipality does not see itself as a credit provision institution and
hence the effect of the time value of money is not considered as all outstanding amounts are immediately payable.

In determining the amount impaired, management estimates the cash flows that it expects to collect based on facts and
circumstances at the reporting date.

The future cash flows of a group of receivables that were individually or collectively evaluated for impairment were estimated
using historical experience. For this purpose, management adopted the payment pattern of each receivable over the previous
12 months as the most appropriate methodology as it reflects the ameount likely to be collected in future.

The impairment loss was measured as the difference between the estimated future cash flows and the carrying amount. Where
the carrying amount is higher than the estimated future cash flows, the carrying amount of the receivable, or group of statutory
receivables, shall be reduced, either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be
recognised in surplus or deficit.

Consumer debtors pledged as security

No consumer debtors were pledged as security in the current financial year.

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Bank balances 483 399 825 395611 849
Short-term deposits 487 355362 591 135679
Money market 55764 276 1655573

1026519463 983403101
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8. Cash and cash equivalents {continued)
Cash and cash equivalents pledged as collateral

Total financial assets pledged as collateral for services rendered by the Post Office to 850 000 850 000
the Municipality - 850 000

Included in the main primary bank account is a guarantee/security of R850 000 to the

Post Office. Should the Municipality fail to meet payment obligations with the Post

Office the amount will be paid aver to the Post Office by the bank.

The municipality had the following bank accounts

Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances

30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
FNB BANK - CHEQUE - 54660078973 482 829401 395150040 483399822 395611850
FNB BANK - CALL - 82090588016 188908 748 189363724 188908748 189363724
FNB BANK - CALL - 82090588793 268 446 613 401771955 208446613 401 771 955
FNB BANK - MONEY MARKET - 62336500320 55 764 276 1665573 55764 277 1855 574
Total 1025949038 987950292 1026 519460 988 403 103

The difference between the Cash and cash equivalents balance for the Cheque (primary) account as per the underlying
accounting records and the Bank confirmation/certificate is caused by outstanding deposits and payments. These are
payments made and receipts received close to year end, therefore, they do not yet reflect in the banking systems.

Outstanding deposits refiecting in the Cashbook and not yet reflecting in the bank

as at 30 June 2023 - Cheque Account 619 270.59
Payments reflecting in the bank and niot yet reflecting in the cashbook as at

30 June 2023 - Cheque Account -48 849.78
Net difference between the Cashbook and Bank Confirmed Balance 570 420.81
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10. Employee benefit obligations
Defined benefit plan

Long service awards

Long service awards policy

Long service benefits are awarded in the form of a number of leave days awarded once an employee has completed a certain
number of years in service,

Long service benefits are awarded in the form of a number of leave days awarded once an employee has completed a certain
number of years in service. We have converted the awarded leave days to a percentage of annual salary by assuming there
are 250 working days per year. The expected value of each employee’s long service award is projected to the next interval by
aliowing for future salary growth

The municipality provides long-service awards to its permanent employeas.

The municipality offers rewards for specified year intervals of completed service,

Valuation method

The Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method is used in the calculations, as required by GRAPéS.

The projected unit credit mathod is an actuarial valuation method that sees each period of service as giving rise to an additional
unit of benefit enfitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final ebligation.

Under the PUC methodelegy, an employee's current salary is projected to future dates using a salary growth scale. It is
assumed that benefits that will accrue in the future are earned evenly between the employee's date of joining and the date that
the benefit becomes available to the employee. The salaries shown in this report are basad on the 30 June 2023 salaries as
provided by the Municipality. We have not made any allowance for an average salary increase on 1 July 2023.

In order to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligations (i.e. the actuarial liability} the cost of the benefits
payable in the future is attiibuted between past service (i.e. service before the valuation date) and future service (i.e. service
after the valuation date) on a prorated basis. The actuarial present value of the benefits attributed to past service is the defined
henefit obligation.

The amount of the actuarial liability that will be attributed to the employee over the one-year period after the valuation date, is
known as the current service cost. It represents the value (at the valuation date) of the benefits that will be earnad over the
following year due to one additional year's service.

In order to determine the defined benefit obligation and the current service cost, future benefits are discounted for investment
returns (time-value of money), mortality and other relevant decrements,

Long service award relate {o the legal obligation to provide long service leave awards. Actuarial benefits have been calculated
for 584 eligible employees as at 30 June 2024 that are entifled to long service awards. The long service awards liability is not a
funded arrangement. i.e. no separate assets have been set aside to meet this liability.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Carrying value

Present value of the defined benefit obligation-wholly unfunded {16 682 879) (17 158 053)
Non-current liabilities (13 866 336) (15194 473)
Current liabilities (2816543) (1963 580}

(16 682 879} (17 158 053)
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10. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Opening balance 17158 053 14 768 463

Benefits paid (1963580) (1515937)

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance 1488 406 3 905 527
16 682879 17 158 053

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance

Gutrent service cost 1292 541 1233789

Interest cost 1980039 1144 857

Actuarial {gains} losses (1784 174) 1527 081

1488 406 3905 527
Calculation of actuarial gains and losses
Actuarial (gains) losses — Obligation {1784 174) 1527 081
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10. Employee benefit obligations {continued)
Key assumptions used

Assumptions used at the reporting date:

Discount rates used 11.74 % 11.54 %
CPI 6.53 % 7.45 %
Expected increase in salaries 753 % 8.45 %
Real rate 3.92% 381 %
Normal retirement age (years) 65 65
Average retirement age (years) 63 63
Mortality SAB5-90 SA85-90

GRAP25 defines the determination of the investment return assumption to be used as the rafe that can be determined by
reference to market yields (at the balance sheet date) on government bonds. The currency and term of the government bends
should be consistent with the currency and estimated term of the obligation,

Discount rate

GRAP25 requires that the market returns on high quality corporate interest bearing bonds should be used on the balance sheet
date. Should a deep market of high quality corporate bonds not exist (as is the case in South Africa), the market yields (at the

end of the reporting period) on government bonds of a consistent currency and term to that of the liabilities should be used to
set the discount rate.

The duration as at 30 June 2022 was calculated to be 8,3 years, which was used to determine the discount rate based on the
lang term yield on the zere coupon government band curve as at 30 June 2023. This discount rate was 11,74% p.a.

A discount rate of 11,54% per annum was used in the previous valuation.

The current duration of the past service iability was calcutated as 8,1 years, which can be used to determine the discount rate
in the next valuation.

Inflation rate

Qur expectation of future inflation amounted to 6,53% p.a. on the valuation date. This was calculated as the real difference
between the yield on long-term government bonds of 11,74% and the index-linked bond yield of 4,89% i.e. [1,1174/1,0489]-1.

Inflation was assumed to be 7,45% p.a. in the previous valuation.

Salary increases

Escalation in the general ievel of salaries as a result of inflation and real salary increases. The general trend is for salaries to
increase faster than the increase in inflation. We used a salary escalation rate of 7,53% per annum in addition to the above-
mentioned merit increases, which includes real growth of approximately 1% per annum (i.e. an inflation rate of 6,53% has been
assumed),

In the calculations, we assume that the salary increases are given on 1 July of each year.

A salary escalation rate of 8.45% per annum was used in the previous valuation.
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10. Employee benefit obligations {continued)

Other assumptions

The resuits in the main report are based on a discount rate of 1 1,74% per annum and a salary escalation rate of 7.53% per
annum with additional provision for merit increases. This implies a real return of 3,92% per annum (1.1174/1,0753-1), without
merit increases.

The results are sensitive to the real rate that is assumed. This is illusirated by doing the calculations using the same salary
escalation rate but different discount rates.

The liabilities calculated using different real rates compare as follows:
One One

percentage percentage
point increase point

decrease
Employer's accrued liability : 15793 097 17 669 260
Employer's current service cost 1165102 1270979
Employer's interest cost 2012 041 1897 679
Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
R R R R R
Prasent value of Defined benefit obligation (16682 879) (17 158053) (14 768 463} (13 829 533) (12578 748)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (1784 174) 1527 081 (101 841) (76 510) 90 416
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11. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2023
Opening Additions Change in Change in Total
Balance discount factor provision of
obligation
Environmental rehabilitation 31993912 - 3074135 (8471 284) 26 596 763
Provision for leave 24 945 249 1735980 - - 26 681 239
56 939 161 1735990 3074135 (8471 284) 53 278 002
Reconciliation of provisions ~ 2022
Opening Additions Change in Change in Total
Balance discount facter provision of
obligation
Environmental rehabilitation 32 410 056 - 2 859 701 {(3275845) 31993012
Provision for leave 24 734 393 210 856 - - 24 945 249
57 144 449 210 856 2 859 701 {(3275845) 56939161
Non-current liabilities 26 596 763 31993912
Current liabilities 26681239 24945249
53 278 002 56 939 161

Environmental rehabilitation provision

The provision for envirenmental rehabilitation of landfill sites relates to the legal obligation to rehabilitate landfill sites used for
waste disposal. For this landfill the rate associated with the maximum periad of 11 years was used, i.e. 5.25% above CPI.

Key Assumptions used:

The Remaining Useful life (RUL) of landfill site 11

CPI 6.1716%
Discount rate 11.4216%
Net effective discount rate 5.25%

Provision for leave

The Municipality grants its employees either 12,22,24 and 27 working days leave per year in recognition of services rendered.

Provision is made for employees who are having leave credit at the end of the financial period and is provided up to 48 days in
terms of the SALBC agreement. The leave provision is calculated by taking the total basic salary/mo of werking days per year x
number of days unused. The municipality has decided not to assess the provision quaiterly, however fo calculate the provision

for leave towards end of financial year to salvage cost.
12. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 672 564 -
572 564 -

less: future finance charges (27 280) -

Present value of minimum lease payments 545 284 -

Present value of minimum lease payments due

- within one year 545 283 -

The cellphone lease contracts were signed with Vodacom over a period of 2 years.
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13. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 19 524 056 35790 045

Income received in advance 12 628 469 11617 114

Accruals 17 334 761 3 B47 847

Retentions 34 638 657 39 104 208

Accrued bonus 6 595211 6 034 220

VAT output accrual 17 313 460 17 439 275

Unallocated deposits 2513988 971 688
110 548 602 114 804 195

14, VAT receivable

VAT 16 165 341 11 878 264

The municipality is registered for VAT an a cash basis with SARS. Vat is payable over to SARS only once the payment is
received from debtors and is receivable from SARS once the payment has been made fo creditors. The amount above is an

accumulation of the accrual and cash basis of taking VAT into account,

15. Consumer deposits

Building plans 64 070 55108
Rental of facilities 320 306 308 103
384 376 363 209

16. Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Municipal Infrastructure Grant 28 000 000 -

Integrated National Electrification Programme 13 382 -

Municipal Disaster Relief Grant - 4012 953
28 013 382 4012 953

Movement during the year

Balance at the beginning of the year 4012953 10 639 179

Additions during the year 740 845 000 645 535 000

Income recognition during the year

(716 844 571) (652 161 226)

28 013 382 4012 953
See note 28 for reconciliation of grants from National/Provincial Government.
17. Sale of goods
Tender documents 122 498 197 997
Sale of property 5187 056 6 559 039

5309 554 6 757 036

18. Service charges
Solid waste 27517 489 25995 649
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19. Rendering of services
Building plan fees 458 365 511 176
Property rezoning 99 423 92 629
Application of deed grant 284 882 214 202
Advertising 42 840 35964
Application fees for land usage 480 856 385 031
Application of sub-division 67 794 140129
Property transfer fees 819 238 624730
Cemetery and Burials 328 343 432 218
Clearance certificates 62 456 52 586
Traffic control 13 926 -
Trading of animals 3021 2877
Demoliticn application fees 163 765 219 572
2 825 909 2710 514
20. Rental of facilities and equipment
Facilities and equipment :
Rental of facilities 2592 664 3290 970
21. Interest received from exchange receivables
Interest frem non-exchange receivables 10 300 653 21175183
22, Agency services
Vehicle Registration 10 464 321 9417738

Thulamela Local Municipality acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the Department of Transport (Principal) as they
administer certain functions on behalf of the Department such as licensing and registration of motor vehicles.

The Municipality would retain a certain portion of all receipts as compensation {agency fees) for administering these services

on behalf of the Department.

The Department uses the Municipality and its staff due to the proximity of the Municipality to households.

The Municipality only recognised the net revenues (agency fees) that accrued to it and only the expenditure incurred by the

Municipality.

23. Licences and permits

Trading 784 773 445 233
The Trading licences relates to Spaza/Hawker licences.

24, Commissions received

Commissions received 14 919 16 142
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25. Other income

Staff recoveries - 16 230
Printing and photocopying 258 373 237177
Insurance 1695 238 1294 420
Sundry revenue 3712029 1944178

5 665 640 3492 005

26. Investment revenue

Interest revenue
Bank 61233715 27 838 728

27. Property rates

Rates received

Residential 40554 970 38 023 993
Commercial ] 214409084 20086 916
State 32448 888 32 829 453

94 454 843 90 940 362

Valuations

Residential 6863397100 6675542700
Commercial 2993097 802 2907 245 440
State 2970054 500 3001 253 500
Municipal 11126312000 1036 007 200

13939180 602 13 620 048 840

Valuations on land and buildings are performed every five years. The last general valuation came inta effect on 1 July 2019.
Supplementary valuations are processed on an annual basis to take into account changes in individual property values due to
alterations. Municipal rates on the tariff listing is applied to property valuations to determine assessment rates. Rates are levied
on a monthly basis on property owners.
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28. Government grants & subsidies

Operating grants

Equitable share 547 960 000 495781 179

Integrated National Electiification Programme 22186618 23 000 000

Financial Management Grant 1650 C00 1650 000

Expanded Public Works Programme Grant 4 864 000 6 069 0600

Infrastructure Skills Development Grant 5250 000 5 500 000
581919618 532000179

Capital grants

Municipal Infrastructure Grant 115912000 111174 000

Municipal Disaster Relief Grant 4012 953 8 987 047

Neighbourhood Development Partnership Grant 15 000 000 -
134 924 953 120 161 047
716 844 571 652161 226

Conditional and Unconditional

Included in above are the fellowing grants and subsidies received:

Conditional grants received 168 875 571 158 380 047

Unconditional grants received 547 969 000 495781 179

716 844 571 652 161 226

Equitable Share

In terms of the Constitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indigent community members.

All registered indigents receive a monthly subsidy of R 8§91 (2022: R 891 3, which is funded from the grant.

Municipal Infrastructure Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current-year receipts

Conditions met - transferred to revenue
MIG set-off with equitable share

143 912 000

10639179
111 174 000

(115 912 000) (111 174 000}

(10 639 178)

28 000 000

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 16).

This grant was used to construct basic municipal infrastructure to provide basic services for the benefit of households

Expanded Public Works Programme Integrated Grant

Current-year receipts 4 864 0C0 6 069 (00
Conditions met - transferred fo revenue (4 864 000}  {B 069 000}
The grant was used for extendad public works programs,

Financial Management Grant

Current-year receipts 1650 000 1 650 000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1650000) (1650000)
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28. Government grants & subsidies {continued)

This grant was used to promofe and support referms to municipal financial management and the implementation of the MEMA
2003.

Infrastructure Skills Development Grant

Current-year receipts 5250 000 5 500 000
Conditions met - fransferred to revenue (5 250 000) (5 500 000)

The grant was used for skills development related to infrastructure improvements.

Integrated National Electrification Programme

Current-year receipts 22200000 23000000
Conditions met - fransferred to revenue (22 186 618) (23 000 000)
13 382 -

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities {see note 16).

The grant was used to address the slectrificatian backiog of permanently occupied residents. There after the projects are
handed over to Eskom for collection of revenue and maintenance.

Municipal Disaster Relief Grant

Baiance unspent at beginning of year 4012 953 -

Current-year raceipts - 13 000 000

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (4 012 953) (8 987 047)
- 4012 953

Neighbourhood Development Partnership Grant

Current-year receipts 15 000 000 -

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1% 000 000) -

29. Skilis development levy refund

Skills development levy refund 661 223 1186 323

30. Public contributions and donations

Daonations 26 800 -

The denation relates to a Roadblock Handheld device for scanning of license disks as weli as drivars licenses for outstanding
offences fram TCS to the value of 17 000 and a donation from Mulamuleli Trading and Projects of four 5GHz wireless radio link
devices valued at R2 450 each.
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31. Fines, Penalties and Forfeits

Building Fines 53393 70 554

Law Enforcement Fines 2574 4389 892

Municipal Traffic Fines 2 976 570 2982770

Undeveloped Sites Fines 4081 368 1685808
7113 905 9129024

32. Interest from nen-exchange receivables

Interest from non-exchange receivables 16 497 571 14 823 164
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33. Employee related costs
Basic 211870475 200 874 854
Bonus 16 609 963 15155 014
Medical aid - company contributions 11 461 045 10 182 680
UIF 1370439 1393 402
Leave pay provision charge 3343922 1546 198
Overtime payments 10418 018 8 053832
Long-service awards 4 422 544 2 936 485
Acting allowances 420 010 149 425
Car allowance 21912785 20 126 993
Housing benefits and allowances 324 777 489 471
Industrial council ievies 75 298 70834
Cellphone allowances 48 000 51600
Pension Fund Contribution 39180694 36880 754
Fringe benefits 4 351 348 -
325 609 318 297 911 342
Remuneration of municipal manager
Annual Remuneration 878 830 882 016
Housing allowance, Car Allowance, Travelling claims and Subsistence allowance 303 274 120 777
13th cheque Bonus 48 824 89 763
Leave pay - 184 410
Acting allowance 35835 35934
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Medical and Pension Funds 12 709 211189
1279572 1531099
Remuneration of chief finance officer
Annual Remuneration 758 842 951 979
Housing allowance, Car Allowance, Traveliing claims and Subsistence allowance 239 328 372973
Acting allowance 66 588 8 791
13th chegue Bonus 20 486 -
Leave pay 120 559 14 489
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Medical and Pension Funds 54 643 -
1260 444 1348 232
Senior Manager: Corporate services
Annual Remuneration 1013 865 956 475
Housing allowance, Car Allowance, Travelling claims and Subsistence allowance 285 660 225 641
13th cheque Bonus 82794 79706
Acting aillowance - 15 348
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Medical and Pension Funds 46 088 44 162
1429 407 1321 322
Senior Manager: Technical services
Annual Remuneration 1078 752 1026 434
Housing allowance, Car Allowance, Travelling claims and Subsistence allowance 210 307 192 242
Acting allowance 54 001 70470
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Medical and Pension Funds 72 988 -
1416 048 1289 146

Senior Manager: Planning and Development
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33. Employee related costs (continued)
Annual Remuneration 275 053 933 422
Housing allowance, Car Allowance, Travelling claims and Subsistence allowance 86 682 281 445
13th chegue Bonus 40 316 77785
Acting allowance 76 958 14 679
Leave pay 107 806 . -
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Medical and Pension Funds 5256 -
592 071 1307 331
Senior manager: Community services
Annual Remuneration 672 286 836 262
Housing allewance, Car Allowance, Travelling claims and Subsistence allowance 233 981 287 353
13th cheque Bonus 66 140 69 689
Leave pay 163 278 71 501
Contributions to UIF, SDL, Medical and Pension Funds 57 063 -
1192 748 1274 805
34. Remuneration of councillors
Executive Mayor 981 839 1 056 807
Chief Whip 749 134 460 627
Speaker 790 140 515992
Councillors 29 265 892 28 623 405
31 787 005 30 656 831

In-kind benefits

The remuneration for the Executive Mayor, Speaker, Chief Whip and all other councillors is inclusive of a cellphone aliowance,
travelling allowance and other benefits, The Executive Mayor, Speaker and Chief whip are full-time. Each is provided with an

office,

The Mayor and the Speaker have use of a Council owned vehicie and driver for official duties.

The salaries, allowances and benefits are within the upper limits of the framework envisaged in section 219 of the Constitution.

Refer to note 47: Related Parties for the detailed disclosure regarding counciliors' remuneration.

35. Depreciation and amortisation

Praperty, plant and equipment 66 601 999 57 880 845
Intangible assets 123 228 655 251
66 725 227 58 536 096

36. Impairment loss

Impairments

Property, plant and equipment 3881535 4 866 551

37. Finance costs

Finance leases 66 669 -

Environmental rehabilitation provision 3074135 285971
3140 804 2859 701
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38. Lease rentals on operating lease
Equipment
Contractual amounts 4 447 659 2 425 555
39. Debt impairment
Debt impairment 63 740 637 (145 247 068)
Bad debts written off 27 374 387 238978478
911156024 93731 410
40, Contracted services
Cutsourced Services
Administrative and Support Staff 1031028 523 480
Burial Services 52 186 -
Catering Services 1203 099 762 101
Hygiene Services 166 528 242 972
Security Services 12 711 577 9648 404
Consultants and Professional Services
Business and Advisory 23 845 047 17 169 241
Infrastructure and Planning 5765174 6015600
Legal Cost 22 595 590 16 919 928
Contractors
Artists and Performers 83 800 9500
Audio-visual Services 244 379 46 431
Building 332 211 115 518
Catering Services 80720 -
Electrical 10543396 ° 2528125
Employee Wellness 3 439 582 1702577
Event Promoters - 5 950
Maintenance of Buildings and Facilities 3080 443 2103 465
Maintenance of Equipment 4101 033 4020812
Maintenance of Unspecified Assets 97 979 230 21610 750
Pest Control and Fumigation 6821 -
Stage and Sound Crew 28000 41 096
187 289 944 83 465 950
41. Transfer and subsidies
Other subsidies
Poverty Relief 1555 424 3 800 939
Grant in Aid 1146 019 895 333
LG SETA 64 835 -
2766 278 4786 272
42, Loss on transfer of assets
Loss on transfer of assefs {19202 712) {20 003 478)

Loss on transfer of assets relates to completed INEP electrification projects which were completed and transferred to Eskom.
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43. General expenses
Advertising 721149 518 406
Auditors remuneration 5094 075 4134084
Bank charges 303 296 270 664
Consumables 14 644 904 12671 219
Entertainment 21500 19 500
Hire 792 939 456 268
Insurance 6 230 353 10 165 368
Skills Development Fund Levy 2641854 2 479 767
Indigent Relief 418 863 1392 221
Fuel and oil 13 640 625 8104 1863
Postage and courier 657 625 769 263
Printing and stationery 979725 492 104
Protective clothing 3085605 1827770
Royalties and license fees 860 282 679 711
Subscriptions and membership fees 5010 845 4301 099
Telephone and fax 8695 117 8240 119
Travel - local 7 241663 3048 888
Title deed search fees 8134 7137
Assets expensed - 21 000
Utilities - Other 13 967 456 8 879 868
Conference expenses 2142140 1465176
Cost of site sold 150 000 45 000
Dumping fees 3660 870 3710210
Ward committee allowances 547G 200 2800 749
Servitudes and land surveys 5317 -
Signage - 959 000
Workmen's compensation fund 2004 472 714 838
Decommissioning Restoration & Similar Liabiiities:Landfill (5 462 253) -
92966 756 77 573 392
44. Cash generated from operations
Surplus 127 360685 184173 112
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 866 725227 58 536 096
Loss on disposal of assets . 7715777 6140 270
Loss on transfer of assets 18292712 20003 478
Land write down - 150 897
Finance costs - Finance leases 66 669 -
Impairiment deficit 3881535 4 866 551
Debt impairment 91 115 024 93 731 410
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities (475 174} 2389 590
Movements in provisions (3661 159) (205 288)
Inventory losses or write-downs - (572 259)
Changes in working capital:
Inventories 1679359 (2508 614)
Receivables from exchange transactions (77 148 812) (81 049 075)
Receivables frem non-exchange transactions 8 428 335 2705 365
Payables from exchange transactions (4 255 598) 40 412 540
VAT (4 287 077) (45 059 966)
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 24 000 429 (6 626 226)
Consumer deposits 21167 26 754
260 459 299 277 114 735
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45. Financial instruments disclosure
Categories of financial instruments
2023
Financial assets
At fair value Total
Trade and other receivabies from exchange transactions 16 522 617 16 622 617

Cash and cash equivalents

1026 519 463

1026 519 463

1043 042 080

1043 042 080

Financial liabilities

At amortised Total
cost
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 110548 603 110 548 603
Consumer deposits 384 376 384 376
110 932 979 110 932 979

2022
Financial assets

At fair value Total
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 30 369 912 30 369 912
Cash and cash equivalents 988 403 101 988 403 101

1018 773 013

1018773 013

Financial liabilities

At amortised Total
cost
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 114 804 195 114 804 195
Consumer deposits 363 209 363 209
115167 404 115167 404

Receivables from non-exchange transactions and VAT have been removed from the disclosure as a financial instraurment due

to GRAP 104.03 which states that statutory receivables are excluded from financial instruments.
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46. Commitments
Authorised capital expenditure

Approved and contracted

. Community Assets 16 156 083 28 633 544
. Roads and Stormwater Infrastructure 103 625 163 86 087 120
. Solid Waste 4714 078 4714078

124 495 324 119434742

Total capital commitments
Approved and contracted 124 495 324 119434 742

This committed expenditure relates to property and will be financed by available bank facilities, retained surpluses, existing
cash resources, funds internally generated, grants from National Treasury, etc.

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)

Minimum lease payments due
- within one year 3020346 1 585 970

- in second to fifth year inclusive 2965482 2839285
' 5985828 4 425 255

The municipality entered into an operating lease agreement with Edusolution Bookshep CC (bid no:26/2021/2022A) for 42
High-end multifunction printers, effective from 1 June 2022. The contract is for 36 manths and doesn't permit the municipality to
sub-lease/sell the machines to a third party. There is no purchase option at the end of the lease term and there is no escalation
clause.

The municipality entered into an operating lease agreement with Edusolution Bookshop CC (bid no:06/2022/2023) for 2{twa)
Sharp MX-m1204, Blank Cartridge multifunction printer, effective from 1 November 2022. The contract is for 36 months and
doesn't permit the municipality to sub-lease/sell the machines te a third party. There is no purchase option at the end of the
lease term and there is no escalation clause.
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47. Contingencies

The table below comprises all the law suits which are deemed to be possible obligations and neither the expense nor the

accompanying lfability was recognised. Thulamela Municipality's legal counsel has indicated that the likelihood of the court

ruling being in favour of the applicant is very slim albeit not remote

Case Progress Applicant Case No. 2023 2022
Bianca Logisfics is seeking a relief for We have filed a discovery [Rianca 529/16 427 000 300 000
damages for failing to get registration Laffidavit regarding Logistics
documents in time after buying a Grader |documenits discovered from
from the municipality the Department of

Transport & Public works

for the alleged tender
Tshivhase Ungani Martha is suing the [The matter is waiting for a  [Tshivhase 662/16 4 266 000 3 000 000
municipality for Loss of support as a frizl date Ungani Martha
result of the death of her husband who
passed away after a tree fell on him.
Hilda Mabaya is suing the municipality for [The plaintiff has abandoned|Hilda Mabaya [352/16 310000 228 284
personal injury. Plaintiff alleges that she [the summons
visited the municipality for services, the
chair in the municipal waiting area broke
and she fell, as a result she was seriously
injured.
Mudau Tshimangadzo Noria is suing the [The applicants has Mudau 1534/2017 5348 000 4 300 000
municipality for damages alleging that herfsubmitted a proposal for  [Tshimangadzo
child was injured by the municipal pipes. [settlement of the matter at |Noria

RB870 000 and we are still

checking the proposal
Plaintiff alleges that he was arrested by he matter is waiting for a }Shumani 506/15 699 000 450 000
traffic officers and acquitted in court. He isftrial date Moses
suing the municipality for unfawful arrest
and detention, injury to his dignity, loss of
personal freedom and general damages.
Matumba Elekanyani is suing the A pre-trial conference was Matumba 117/2015 446 000 300 000
municipality in an amount of R300 000 for held on the 19th February [Elekenyani
unlawful detention, contumelia, pain and [2019 and we have filed the
suffering after he was arrested for failing [pre-trial minutes
to pay trafiic fine and he was detained in
a traffic van and later the traffic van was
involved in an acecident.
Nevondo Mukovhe is suing the A pre-trial conference was  [Nevondo 439/2015 446 000 300 000
municipality in an amount of R300 000 for|held on the 19th February [Mukovhe
unfawfyl detention, contumelia, pain and {2019 and we have filed the
suffering after he was arrested for failing [ore-trial minutes
to pay traffic fine and he was detainad in
a traffic van and later the traffic van was
involved in an accident.
Applicant is suing the municipality in an  We have issued a notice to Mopicon 1087/2019 and 220000 200 000
amaunt of R200 000 regarding Makonde |oppose the summons and  [Construction 1074/2020
Stadium Project the matter is on replication [Pty Ltd

lstage
Applicant is suing the municipality for pplicants submitted a PBN Mawila [762/2019 76 736 66 736
compensation for damages she incurred [settiement proposal and as
on her motor vehicle when hitting a uch couid not be
pothole jprocessed as the Executive

Committee rejected

ettlernent proposal by the
administration
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47. Contingencies (continued)
Applicant is suing the municipality an he matter is postponed  [Masithi 331/2020 2100000 1849 000
amount of R1 849 000 for the death of his [sine die Awelani
son. Plaintiff alleges that the deceased
was crossing a water filled trench using a
wooden roof beam that has been placed
across the open trench as a makeshift
bridge when deceased iost her footing
and fell into the water filled trench
Applicant is suing the municipality for We have issued a notice to Mictor Gidimani[167/2020 6 996 000 200 000
expropriation of land without oppose the summeoens and [Ramabulana
compensation by the Venda Government fthe matter is on replication

fage
Plaindiff is suing the municipality for e have issued a notice of [Hlungwane 1461/2020 1749 500 1500 000
unlawful arrest, unlawful detention and  [intention o oppose the Sipho
defamation of character by the traffic application and have since [Lawrence
officers Hled the answering affidavit
Applicant is suing the municipality for e have issued a notice of [Bianca Towing |1489/2020 108 000 100 000
towing a grader and storage fees intention to oppose the

application and have since

iled the answering affidavit
Plaintiff is suing the municipaiity for e have issued a notice of [Hlungwane 169/2021 1749 000 1 500 000
unlawful airest, unlawful detention and  lintention to oppose the Amos
defamation of character by the traffic application and have since [Maitakhole
officers fled the answering affidavit
Plaintiff is suing the municipality for falling[We have issued a notice of Gomedzo 328/2021 113 000 100 000
into a ditch/hole at Muledane area intention to defend [Thomas
Plaintiff is suing the municipality for I:Ne are now exchanging  [Tshithiwa 1500/2020 317 000 300 000
defamation of character as a result of he pleadings Cassius
case 673/2020 Bianca Towing Lukoto
The applicant is suing the municipality an We have issued a notice fo Tshitereke 333/2022 113 000 100 000
amount of R 5 000 000.00 for loss of oppose the summons Wilson
residential site, financial loss, Mufamadi
psychological stress, loss of business and
confumslia
Dorkus Neuky Manari is suing the We have filed an answering[Dorkus Neuky [1366/2021 911 000 -
municipality an amount of R850 000 for  |affidavit Manari
emotional stress due to the delay of '
transfer of site
Madaba Joseph is suing the municipality [We have issued a notice to [Madaba 804/2023 200 000 -
-an amount of R12 000 000 for oppose the summons and  [Jeseph
expropriation of land without the matter is on replication
compensation tage
Mathohe Musundwa is suing the e have opposed the Mathoho 2126/2022 482 000 -
municipality for an amount of R450 000 ummons Musundwa
due to damages that were incurred by
Lebaka Censtruction during construction
of Extension E tarred Road.
Plaintiff is suing the municipality for failing Neduvhuledza [945/2017 108 000 -
to transfer the site at Tshilungoma into his Bethuel
names

27184736 14 494 020

83




Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023

{Registration number LIM343)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023 2022

48. Related parties

Relationships
Accounting Officer Refer to accounting officers' report note
Members of key management MT Makumule - Municipal Manager
AC Mufamadi - Chief Financial Officer
ME Nemaname - Acting Chief Financial Officer
35S Razwiedani - Senior Manager: Community
Services
MS Madi -Acting Senior Manager: Community
services
NA Todani - Senior Manager: Corporate Services
A Gangashe - Senior Manager: Technical Services
MT Makumule - Senior Manager: Planning &
Development
HA Nemadzhilili - Acting Senior Manager: Planning &
. Development
The municipality has councillors that act as a governing body who may have significant influence over the financial and/or
aperating policies of the municipality.

All Councillors have disclosed their interest in related parties and no one has the ability to control or exercise significant
infiuence over the Council in making financial and operational decisions.

During the financial year no Councillor or Official had any interest in related parfies and no one could contrel or influence
Council in making financial or operational decisions.

The municipality had no other ralated party transactions or balances during the financial year outside of the contractual
remuneration of senior management, councillor allowances of the councillors and councillors arrear accounts.

Refer to Note 33 for the disclosure of senior manégement remuneration.

Refer to Note 55 for the disclosure of councillor arrear accounts.

84




68

SI0[j13UNoy sSE|D JUsweheuely

§90025¢ vie LEE £0L LEL erl LLL GlGvi8 L
06t 952 9l 9¢ ELS YL S49 B6Y 610 95L diypn JeIyo JeLio - N ISOYR 41D
020 99t 80Z 29 24292 6L +01 0e6 g/¢ diyan J2I4D - d 1 BPE[RIN 11D
6. 89¢ FARS N LG ¥l €68 ¢ L2 8le Jexeeds Jeulod - Sy epngwey 41
68l 8% 0BE €9 €22 92 LGl 2 §lg 18¢ leyeeds - ¥4 euBMBYINK 1|0
9.1 ¥El S69 Gl LG ¥l - 016 0l Jofepy aanoexs Jewuo - Sy obueyyys) nio
¥¥6 L2E 609 OF (AR 48 - ¥9. 2.2 JoARN 8ANI8XT JBWIOL - dH I1ZPAYASIN H|D
PStr 885 096 06 £lC 9C 698 ¢ 95/ 89% Jofefy aARnoeXT - SY epnquiey 111D
SWEN
sjjauagy
183410 ¥ 1As
‘pIY [BIIPAN JoUBMO| B
|etol ‘uoisuad suoydjen  souemoljz en  Kejes J|1seg
(44114
G667 195 Z 599 08¢ 00¥ 221 58 8Ll 8.5288 L
609 TLL 650 16 008 O ¥6G 141 961 £9¢F dium J8I4D - d L Bpeiel JID
062 66/ +#80 52l 008 OF A T ArAN:] Jxeads - vd euBmBUINA (1D
069 766 ¢Cs FolL 008 OF VAL €0l /8L JoAepy sangexd - Sy epRqWEs JID
aweN
sjeuUeq
BP0 e 1as
‘pIy [eaipsiy aouemo|e
|e101 ‘UDISUSH suoydiien  souemoje Jeny  Aees diseg
£20C

SIS 2333IWIWOoY [eloAR :SSe|o Juswebeuepy
juawaBeuew Jo UoleIBUNWSY

(panupuoo} saued paje|sy i

puey ut sainbi4

SJUaWIdJe}S [eIoUBUIH [enuuy ay) 0} S8JON

€Z0Z sunp g pspus teak ay} 10} SIUSWISIE)S [BIZURUIH [BNULY
{(EFEINIT Jaquinu uojiens|Bay)

€20z aunr pg Ayjediviunyy [e207 eRwe|NY |



98

€94 ¢
€9l ¢
662 1
£9.¢
.99¢
1992
€9/ ¢
0¥ ¢

[elol

£e
£e
[4>
og

1BYo % 1as
‘pIV [E21pajy

spjauaq

‘ucisuad

08¢ |

98¢ |

gouemoj[e
suoyd|len

37
§s.

17

G8L
Por

acuemole Jen  Aees oiseg

9/6

9 OIS L D
IN BUBMBYSEI J|ID
ON tefunpy 110

V1 ysniaN 11D

VY sualysiysieN JID
L1 redunpy 11D

L mmbBiys] o

SV epnquey 1o
SN eXeEIN HID

3 sbuoysiysl NS
L luabsjewsn 412
dN luayeBuelsN 410
N BZpSpussey IO
7 oButs S

08 eyaeysieben 40
WIN lqwenpniy 4D
INL 2|ama{amen] JD
dH reAuniy o

11 uemnp a0

dN NOpN IS

N Buyeyde 410

di [uebuss o

o1 oBuUNeI J(1D

AL BGIUS D

IS IUBUBYALZRELWSN J|1D
SN Bphge 41D

N IUUBIngIN 41D

AN AuepueInig D
BEN

£20¢

{panunuod) saiped pejejoy gy

puey u ssunbi4

SJUAWIAYE]S [eIDURUI4 [BNUUY 3] 0] S9ION

£Z0Z 8uUnr O pspus Jeak su Jo) SJUSWISIE)S (BIDUBUIH [BNUUY
(ErenIT 49gquwinu uonensibsy)

€20Z aunp og Apijediolungy [eoo] ejawelnyL



48

66¢ |
66¢ |
66¢ |
66¢ |
£99¢
€0. ¢
66¢ L
66¢ |
B6¢ |
662 |
€9/ 2
£99¢
66¢ |
£€9.¢
662 |
€662 |
66¢ |
B66Z L
£9L ¢
662 |
8Le )
662 1
66¢C |
Pri T
£94 ¢
8lE L
yric
£9.C
£99¢
66¢ |
€9. ¢
€9l ¢
€9i ¢
€94 ¢
£€9.¢
¢so e

98z |
982 |
98z |
982 |1

982 1
982 |
98¢ L
98z |

982 |

g98¢c |
98z i
98z |
98¢ |

982 |
98¢ |

666

Zlgze

dH 1ZpayAao|npy 4D
ON ISOUe 1D

1O tpulew 110

13 ponw o

Al OEm_ch:S_ 1D
dl epobep 41D

05 epuImy IO

)| ch_.__m._mEmZ A0
W1 opucpew 4D
'y eueyreQg JID

N BUIBUHYSISN 41D
o oqueeyiely 4D
ST esnpep D

diN BlYSEWEY 41D
v BUBMISUINR JIID
SN IZpheinng 1o
Sv oBueyjys] 4o
VN BgaIT 1D

N iZpne|np Jno

S1 suejsped Jj|0
gL Mydep 1o

I emiAuSUN J[ID
I tnydeydiy o

Il BlIPUBYAIZDEIN 11D
SV IPeUAIZPRWEN J[ID
aw oBuojiwey 410
1 sfosei o

N 8j8[@yzusn JIO
dd BlomeN 4D

7L wweBuelynjay 10
1 luownBnwap 410
LN sBuejexiysy nio
dN Elagueepn 4D
WY niexeln 1o

08 dipes N5

A1 njnesiysisN o

(renunuoo) sened pajeey ‘gi

puey v saunbly

SJUSWIBE]S [eISUBUL] [BNUUY By} O} SIJON

£20¢ aunp 0g pepus Jzak ay} uo} sjusWelRlg [B1oUELI [ENnUUY
{EPEWIT J2qwnu uogensiBoy)

€202 aunp og Ayjediotunpy (2207 ejswejny}



28

166 L64
6y LGE
90F cre
LS BEC
LLE BEE
Oi¥ 6EE
694 6e€
ggc 0ve
98¢ 52F
122 B68¢
cov e
851 e
£65 0¥
208 ¢e¥
P9 SPE
9z ove
958 SvE
&gl Ove
Sl ObE
66¢ |
€oL ¢
66¢ [
L84 ¢
E9LC
662 |
66¢ |
Gl¥ €
PS5 C
£89¢
SrS €
ShS €
19t €
£99 ¢
662 |
£9. ¢
662 L

L0 S21
Ol¥ L¥
LOS ¢
iy oF
civ OF
$00 L€
798 O
Ll le
See e
iy OF
¥06 ¢
099 #¢
889 I¥
L¥6 09
9zl /g
evs e
0F Lg

¥is 6e
rlS6e
008 Or
008 OF
008 0¥
008 0¥
008 OF
008 O
¥lS 6t
008 o
008 O
008 o
008 o
008 o
008 o
008 o¥
008 o¥
008 o¥
¥LS 68
98¢ |

982 L

98¢ |
98¢ |

2L L
196 ¥

6€8 ¢4

€CLEL
80t 04

oFs €4
oFs €4

gcL el
SQZ ¥L
€6l €L

1474

178
GS.L

8Cg
696

GGL

642 2e9
¥59 561
S01 85¢
S0l 952
501 8¢
£9L v6l
G0l 85¢
866 €61
lev gie
S0l 85¢
csl val
ZSl vBl
501 85¢
094 0EE
866 €61
6.5 ¢6l
85¥ 61
G0l 85¢
6EL 08T

961

9.6
9.6 |

6lc ¢
9l6 |
Feo e
9es ¢
988 2
PeES T
¥e9 &

946 |

V4 eUBMIBUINK JID
YL IUsnsN )10

d Ipzely 4110

HY BwiomEw 19

H IWgeyning 1o

[N BPUBISIaN 1D
dH esedep 1D

8 oMZuenuaey J|o
YV AUAIUSIUSIEN 11D
4 euemisewlan JiD
N BUARUSIEIA JIID
SN empuueleud o
L1 owoysien 10
Y Squn|e] 41D
o wsBuady 410

N 2l8j2yzuan 4o
S1 squBYABLNYSN JID
T IUBYEINYA D

L ueBusyinsN 41D
HIN BpUIMY J|D

DI awobejeyz 4|5
riA eqered 41D

™ ByBYHIYSIAN 1D
HIN lUBBYSEIA 1|3
7 eqeied 410

I 1Zpnenp 41D

«7 OUEBEUEY o
H1esidiysieN D
aw ebeseyl 1o

i eueiysnwen Jj|o
HN empuueeyd 0
3N BUBMIDUBIALI[ID
rL Bnpunsy o

gH oyanuwey 1o

3 efunzpew 410

d1 Eepeen 4o

{(penunuoo) sanued pajelay gy

puey Ul sanbiq

SJUdWA)e)S [eldURULY [ENUUY 9Y) O] SIJON

" £Z0Z 2UN[ 0¢ pepus Jeak By J0) SIUSLURIEIS [BIDUBUIY [ENULUY
(EFEWIN Jaquinu uoessiBay)

€20Z aung og Ajijedioluniy [eso ejowe|ny L



68

€C8 LPE
9E¥ 2
95¢ L¥E
695 9TF
LAE BEE
865 L6/
all €08
Zeg Lpe
828 pPe
6vC oFE
oLe iz
8e8 vPe
221 $0S
556 6¥F
950 L¥E
118 GEE
o¥e ¥2r
11€ 6gE
$99 ere
9z¢ &v¢
LLE 6EC
€65 0¥e
09l Z¥e
PAAYA 4
£6G 0¥T
£70 9F¢
205 62¢
cLl 9Tr
G26 12k
Scr Ove
Zs0 1ve
41T BEE
€Ly GZF
£9¢ GT¥
00Z G¥E
£S5 £9€

00 L€
948 1§
iZe LE
al5 c¥
iy OF
204 €L
£r6 851
96¥ OF
850 L€
L¥S OF
¥ L6
850 L€
L¥C v0l
049 08
€20 1€
¢lv OF
08z £9
civ OF
geg e
L6268
civ OF
889 LY
804 €8
FAN AT
889 LY
¥LoSE
¥00 L
OEE eF
[« 2% 4
€46 1E
€20 L€
iy O
#0S 29
1S5S Ly
S6¢ 9
12l ¥E

¥lLG 6E
008 OF
¥lg 6t
¥LS B¢
008 OF
PLS 6
008 oF
¥LS B
¥LG 6
PlS 62

PLG 6E -

¥IS 62
¥LG 62
PLG 62
¥LS 6€
008 o
008 O
008 OF
PLG 6e
PG 6e
008 OF
008 OF
008 OF
¥lLG 6E
008 OF
¥LG 6E
008 OF
008 0¥
PLG 6E
008 O
715 6¢€
008 OF
¥1S 62
008 OF
008 OF
¥LS 6E

SL1SL

196 ¥#2
801 0L

8¢e 951
SS9 EFl

§66 S/

S5 LLL
G566 52
158 66
¢St 89
196 ¥L

196 ¥L
196 ¥

€61 €4
£598 66

196 ¥4
o¥s €L
8Gl ¥6
£00 96
€6l €4
196 ¥.

LE6 €6

FEE 08

¥l 1 961
0ol oge
P55 961
Ly 2ie
S0l 8sg
6¥0 L9¥
8lL 65F
Zee 192
19T 861
88¢ 99C
961 €9¥
9T 861
606G 092
6lLE 19T
8GG 561
G501 85T
094 D
S0l 892
¥95 661
¥55 G61
S0l 8%¢
S0l 852
6S¥ ¥61
605 092
S0l 892
PSg 561
¢Sl w6l
788 8tc
909 05¢
65 ¥61
59 g6l
501 89¢
Gee gec
180 6C
50l 892
¥.5 602

LA psn D
ON equiepey JD
M"Y mcm_.._>mn_ AD
3N emiAuauniy 11D
3y lunBunyyen 413
VN BGaIT D

W IVBYARYS IO
gv obiueypysy N0
DN ISOYBIN JID

dH 1zpsyaoiniy JHD
d1 epeje 110

SN Izpne|nil 1D
I 1Zpnejniy o
37 eqesebi 4o

M eqesebiy o
31 1Zpayzuniy 1D
OV elebusyy 1D
Qv nuebep 410

rL _:wmw_mEmZ Fllia]
51 obunxely 4o
YN [ZPnejoly J|[D

A emBINALIID

WAL 1Zpneiniy J11D
$7 esnpey 4D

N G 1D

LL (eAunpy 11D

W BINYARY J[1D

M ejomyisIsN 11D
N ellpuByAIZDRW J1D
1 ejaepy D

dN luayeBbueen 110
N3 1Zpnenw D

W Inudeydiy g
ay ueAueyy Jo
S1 lzpeydr 410

1 mbBiysy o

{panunuoo) saipied pajeley gi

puey ul saunbiy

SJUSLWAJR}S [eIDURUIL [BENUUY 3Y] 0] S3)ON

£Z0Z BUN[ 0F PapU Jeak sy) Joy SJUSLISIE]S RIDLEUI S [BNUUY
(EPEWIT Joquunu uonessiBsy)

€20z 2unp og Aljedioluniy [e20] efawe|ny



aweN

siyeuaq
layo ® 108
‘Pl [EDIpapy 2auemo||e
1ejol ‘uoisuad suoydien  souemole ien  Auejes diseg

ZZ0Z
0ES P26 2E  LZTLLL Y 00Z 162 ¢ VoS ELL ¥ S0¢ 9% L2
teb 98¢ acy OF 008 O¥ - 861 66Z W EwRlewepeg 41D
980 OFE L6F OF ¥LS 68 - 180 092 SL Iuejsped JiD
§/8 SPE £LZ /8 rLG 68 #65 €L ¥85 G61 aH cunwEy Jiio
¥l LPE 591 6€ 008 OF LOZ ¥l 895 LVE T BUBMIUIYSL A1
Ll€ 6EE Tiv OF 008 O - 50l 887 3] yzumzey J|1D
LlE BEE Tl OF 008 0% - 501 852 M BINNISIYsL J|D
205 68€ #00 LE 008 0% 9¥S £/ 25l 61 IH ererequzpen 41D
666 6EE 060 L¥ 008 O¥ - S0l 852 M ambuog JIiD
180 v £68 I ¥1G 8E ZZ2 86 208 L62 AN euemRYSEN JI1D
964 L¥E ZE0 LE #1688 L0 %L €Ll 6L HIN BRUIMY 1D
S8Y L¥E ¥Sl 29 16 68 65/ 790 0¥2 L sloaep 410
95F 66E #00 L€ 008 0% £61 €2 65Y P61 ML oyeydin D
9Ty £¥E ¥26 ¥E 008 O¥ €61 €4 65¥ ¥61 N4 embag o
1l€ 6EE Tiv OF 008 OF - GOl 852 I Wyde 410
Z0S 6EE #00 LE 008 O oS EL TSI 6L 7 emisoud 410
9.5 96¢ 006 LOL 008 0¥ 86 /6 226 662 dA 2881 JI1D
S0S 899 6LL 0OZL ¥1G 8¢ 156 ZEL 126 S6E W epuopeN I
915 85k #96 €9 008 OF £00 /6 16/ 952 SN 1ZpByaciny J1D
118 BEE Tiv OF 008 0¥ - 50l 852 W IWNPE J|0
169 262 /8Y 96 16 6% Pz TLL ZZY 6vP QL Iputep 419
9.4 118 ag| crl #1668 /85 891 68¥ 09¥ 05 epumy (1D
162 166 8035 ¥OL 716 68 LLL €01 482 Sy epngwey J||2
L€ BES Tiv oy 008 OF - S0l 852 g7 BUsOUd J)ID
$Z6 222 169 0Z 00T 22 £16 8F 1zl LEl 7 embBuayae 1D
805 L¥E 8i¥ LE 716 68 196 ¥ ¥GG 6B M ayZUBIBWASN J)|D
LIE BEE Ziv OF 008 OF - 60l 85Z Sieg o

(panunuoo) seiyied pajelay ‘g

puey u| sainbi4

SjuUaWaje}s [eloueUl4 [ENUUY 34} 0} S8JON

£20Z 2unr O papus J2ak oy 10 SJUaLIS)EIS [ZIoUBUIL [BNUUY

¢£zZ0g unp pg Ajedioun

(EFENIN tagwnu uoyessiBay)
Nl |e207 elowe|ny L



16

225 9L}
€26 Gl1
689 G|
966 9L
620911
689 G|
689 6Ll
S1¢ 6¥l
689 G
689 GLI
689 Gl |
689 6L
€25 gLl
828 gLl
LLE ¥rl
6l 89¢
689 GLL
689 GL1
689 G|
689 9L}
pracpeyy s
68961
689 91}
689 SLi
689 5L
689 51
il LLL
8¢8 Sl
SLS 9L
689 SLL
689 G611
629 SLL
o9 Gll
€29 Sl
680 Gl
oov AL

crl €l
[A4%1"
080 0l
28 L1
080 0}
080 0}
080 0l
182 1
080 01
080 0L
080 0}
080 0}
crl €l
6tz 0l
806 21
Ll9ge
080 0l
080 0l
080 0l
080 01
vl gl
080 0L
080 0l
080 01
080 01
080 0l
8¢5 LI
6Lz 0l
906 0L
080 01
08001
080 01
182 €l
ki €l
080 0L
6% 12

145 ¥l
1S ¥l
LIS Pl
145 ¥l
LLS ¥l
LIS ¥l
LIS ¥l
LIS ¥l
LIS ¥l
LIS vl
1S ¥l
145 ¥l
14S ¥l
LG ¥l
LS ¥l
LLS ¥l
LiS ¥l
LLS ¥l
L4 Pl
ELS Pl
[FAh 4
LLG PL
LiS ¥l
LLG Pl
LiS Pl
ELS Pl
LS ¥l
LLS ¥l
LLS L
LLS ¥l
LLS ¥l
[FA R 4
LIS L
LS L
LLG L
AN 4%

0gl sz
0gl sz
08l 5T
08l sz
08l sz
L6Z €€
08l 5z
08l g2
08l Gz
081 6T

08l sz
rieze
€8 ¢

T
oel g2
08l 5T
08l gz

08l S5¢
08l 62
08l 92
081 52
08l 92
08l g2
08l g2
08l 52
08l 92
081 52
08l S¢

081 52
¥l Gi

01848
0Lg 48
8498 60
8598 50
858 69
8598 99
858 99
L0 48
858 99
858 69
858 99
858 59
018 L8
858 50
8LG 8
121812
848 59
858 99
858 59
858 50
0lLg L8
858 59
858 50
848 59
898 59
858 59
858 50
858 50
858 59
858 59
858 59
858 59
ol8 i
ol8 8
868 59
858 59

3d eleme 41D
L webueyinBN 41D
1 _coEam:Emz Ao
LN ebBueiexiysy 4|2
dN Blequieiei J||1o
WY niexen 4|10

DS BiIpes 41D

31 nnesiysieN JI12
O olIYsL D

N BUEMEYSEN J||D
ON 1BAUNP JIID

VL IYsnisN 1D

VY SUAIYSIUSIEN JID
L1 teAunpy 410

L 1mBiYsL 10

SV epnawey 410
SIN BXE[EN 11D

3 @Buoysiys) 410
rL _cwmm_mEmZ i o]
dN [ueyebueleN 41D
WY EZpopuasey 4||D
7 0Buig 11D

QS eyneysiebep 1|0
NI [GUERpNA 311D
L elema|amel] J][D
4H teAuniy 31D

L1 uemny ijo

=N NOpN 41D

AN eyeydely 41D

diy ueBuss a0

o1 oBunyep 41D

AL BUAIYS NID

34 IUEUBYAIZPDEWSN J||D
OIN EpNae JID

N IUByengi D

AN AUBPUBINEL 2D
{panunuoo) seued pajejay g

puey u| saunbig4

SJU9WIE]S JeIoueUl] [Enuuy 9y} 0} S910N

£Z0Z 2Unf O pepUS JBSA SU) 10} SJUBLIBIELS [EIDUBLIH |ENUUY
{erewI tequinu uoyelsibey)

€20z aunr og Ayjediouniy (207 ejowejny



6

c99 SLL
LLE ¥PL
LLE ¥FL
8LT vl
€es Gl
<66 9l
689GlL1
€L 452
¥re L2€
06¥ 95¢
L0 ive
bLE ¥Rl
€25 6!L1
828 Gl
689 G1l
689 G511
Lle ¥Rl
689 Gl
689 SL1
€25 Gkl
019 L9¢
689 Gl
cee 8yl
9ev L5¢
9l el
LLE ¥PL
689 5LL
689 G111
689 GL1I
£¢9 6§11
eZg Sl
LLE vl
689 Gl
689 Gl
951 211
689 SLL

18z €k
806 2L
806 ¢l
226 8l
4433
€8E 1L
Q80 0L
20 L2
609 0P
g9l 92
120 €2
206 21
vl €l
612 0l
080 01
08001
806 21
080 01
080 0L
erl €l
Sie 2
080 0L
862 €1
bLL 22
S69 Gl
806 21
080 01
080 0l
080 01
44 23
arl €l
806 2l
080 0L
080 01
L¥5 L1
080 01

LLS ¥l
145 ¥l
LLS Pl
LLS ¥
LS ¥l
LLS ¥l
LS Pl
L4S Pl
LLS ¥l
LLS ¥l
LLS ¥l
LLS ¥l
LLS L
LIS Pl
LIS L
LIS P
LIS PL
LIS ¥l
LG vl
LIS ¥l
LG L
LIS Pl
FLG L
LiG ¥l
LG Pl
LiG Pl
LLS ¥l
LiG TL
LLS L
LiG L
LIS ¥l
[FAR 4%
LS ¥l
LLS vl
LG Pl
LLS Pl

Fieze
rie e
¥leog

08l 52
08l 52
G/9 8%

G.9 6%
¥26 1S
rlEce

08} 5S¢
081 §¢
081 S52
¥l gt
08l 5T
08l s¢

G969
08l S¢
162 €2
S.9 65

¥le ge
08} 52
081 Sc
081 5¢

FlE ¢e
08l sZ
08l s¢
081 S2
08l S¢

oi8 /8
815 ¥8
815 ¥8
697 ¥8
o018 g
858 9
858 59
640 951
¥9. ¢ig
60 951
L0S LSL
8LG 8
0L8 22
868 59
858 69
268 59
8LG ¥8
858 ¢9
268 59
ole i
B840 951
268 69
L0 /8
840 951
016 €0l
25 v8
268 59
858 59
858 59
018 /8
0Le i8
LG ¥8
968 g9
858 99
840 59
868 G9

aw eberey) 419

A1 BUEIYShWER 41D
N empuug|eyd J|I2
3N BUBMIBUBIN JID
r1 eppung Jio

gH oujlinwey 1o

3J eAUNZPEW J1D

d1 EPEBIA 4|D

dH 1Zpayaoiniy 1D
ON 1soye D

1O pullei D

LI PRI D

I OWE[RPURRY D

d L epolep 41D

28 BRPUNG 1D

M |yzuslewsy J[|D
W1 CPUOPB J|ID
My BUBYABRQ J||D

W susyiiysian 41D
o oquieyieig J1D

S eSnpEN AID

dif BIYSBLUERY J(|D
¥4 BUBMIBUINAL D
SN 1Zpnenip 1D

SV oBuByiysL 41D
WN eqsi I3

N 1Zpne|ni 13

S1 suejaped 1o
a1 uydew 1D

I emiAusunpy J)ID
W Inydeydiy 11

W ElIPUBYAIZPEIN JID
SV IPBYAEZDNLUSN JIID
g oBuonwiey 415
L 8[0dely D

N 32IUZUsN 41D

(panupuos)} seued pajelsy  -gb

puey ul saunbiy

sjuswale)s [eIdueuly [enuuy ayj 0} S9JON

£Z0Z 2UNr Og papus Jeak al} 10} SIUSLISIE)S [BlOUBLIH [BNULY
(SFEINIT J2qwnu uoiensifay)

€202 aunr og Ajedioluny |eso] ejawelny



€6

8¢y 8¥C
6¢6 60C
656 60¢
¢L6 602
0588 eve
€46 6¥C
¥al ¥1e
656 60T
68E QLF
95¢ 81T
226 60T
Ze6 602
££6 60T
Zt6 602
Z¢6 802
156 602
048 £¥e
Ze6 602
=R ¥d
L¥6 80T
506 0le
986 LT
£l vle
696 602
€oP LT
¢€6 80T
¢E6 602
gLo 8l
689 GL)
588 6SL1
29l 51}
689 Gl1
LS¢ 8¥L
0cc 95¢
9Z0 ¥l
¥0LSLL

969 /T
PRI A
SE 61
FACTAYA
okl 0t
96¢ €
66% 6¢
&€ 61
06€ €9
LS9 52
FASIATA
19z s¢
192 5¢
L9C &8¢
192 52
Zkr 1T
grl 0g
192 &¢
cl8 e
FA A
0¥z 92
28z ve
¥9.L ST
v¥SE 61
L0C 82
192 52
192 62
6vt L1
080 0l
5L 0l
€51 0l
080 0l
S46 2T
§68 52
gc8 9l
ave L1

€L 9T
£l 92
£L¢ 92
€2 92
£le 9e
€l 92
LT 92
elc 92
£LE 92
€42 92
elZ 9¢
el 9C
el 9C
ele 92
L2 92
€L 92
€12 92
€12 92
€42 92
£©L¢ 92
£Le 9¢
€42 9C
£LC 92
€2 92
el2 92
L2 92
£l 92
LS ¥l
LS Pl
LiG ¥l
LIS Pl
LLG ¥l
| Y454
FLS L
LLG ¥l
LiS ¥l

081 52
08l s¢
€Co ez
G40 65

YA A

SRR 4
evl el
P6L 8L
Z6¢ 851
LEF 181
8LC ¥l
Z6¢ 851
PBL 8LL
Glg 18¢
P6L 8L
Z6¢g 8%l
Z6¢ 851
£6¢ 851
Z6¢ 851
Z6¢ 851
0LL2El
Le¥ 281
Z6¢ 851
68 LE)
¥68 ICL
Z6¢ 851
LE¥ /81
0i22El
6. 8L
£kl 8rl
¢6¢e 851
26¢ 851
960 911
868 59

086 §9

858 9

898 99

¢/0/8

B0 851
AR KA
868 99

N BlIpUBYAIZDRIA D
LA BIReN D
dN luayebuelsy JID
3 1Zpnenw Jo
W nydeydpy a0
ay uedueyt 1o
S1 1zpeydi 10
L1mdysl o
Y4 BUBMIBUINIAL JIID
YL IysnieN D
o IPILREIN (1D
o BWOWIRIAL 1D

H yiewpniy o
MA epuUBISIBN JIID
dH BSEQRI ]|
1S omzuenuyARY J[|D
WY SUAlYsiysieN dID
M4 BUBMISELUSN J||D
N eUARYSIEIN J(1D
dN empuueeyd 1D
11 owoysiewn J[ID
DY FYUNETJID
o uabuzgp JIID
N SISRYZYIN JHD
S1 YWBYABLMEN JID
TIURYRINYA D
7L uebueuinieN 410
HIN BRUIMM JIID
SN swobeleyz J|1o
MW eqelebi o
X [UsUiYsIEN D
HIN luneyse J)i0
ERR=ET T BT
2 Zpneny i
o1 oueeWEY J[jD)
H1 esidiysieN 411D
(panunuos) satued pajeloy "gf

puey ul sasnBig

S]UOLWIAJE)S |RIDURUL [eNUUY 9Y) 0) S9JON

€202 aunp 0f papuoe Jeak au) 10) SJUSLIBIEG [BIOUEBUL [BRLUY
(EPENIT Jequinu voessiBay)

€202 aunp og Ayiediounyy [e207 ejaWeNY L



¥6

Ze6 60¢
80¢ ¥
065 ¥or
PG 8989
¢t6 50C
€89 0Le
9lg 0le
<E6 60¢
656 602
CL5 eve
656 60¢
686 €¥Z
2e6 602
c66 SOF
99t ¥ob
2e6 60C
o0 Zie
¢E6 60¢C
020 95
942 91¢
gl¥ 86¢
666 602
646 60¢
Ze6 60C
088 e¥e
€e6 860¢
656 60¢
¥e¥ LLT
2t6 60¢
506 0l¢
Ligcle
¥60 L.C
506 0lC
gooele
968 L1g
gFe L2

AT TA
GlLE 6
847209
09S 06
L92 52
08¥ ¥2
LiL 6L
FASTATA
vee 6l
898 62
¥5c 61
§gec ot
492 6¢
£6E 89
64L 94
£9¢ g¢
8% i¢
192 92
802 ¢9
14952
649 LS
€12 6E
¥St 61
192 ST
arl 0t
292 S¢
¥se Bl
688 0Z
19¢ 52
0¥c 92
609 92
159¢€ 9¢
0¥z 92
86¢ 22
95 ¥2
645 0T

€42 92
€42 92
€42 92
€12 92
€LZ2 92
€12 92
£le 9e
€L 9T
X ATA
€L 9T
£L292
€.C 92
L2 92
€lc 92
€42 92
€de 92
€292
€42 92
€42 92
€42 92
€42 92
€L 92
€42 92
€Lz 9C
€lZ2 92
€42 92
L2 92
PAAATA
el 92
elege
€L 92
€L 92
€292
€292
€42 92
€42 92

Lo Lo}
619 ¥0L
G988 ¢

984 LI
8ES 5P

8E5 G

8€S G

90y 86
666 S

9e5 G

619 0L
2E6 5¥
0ty 65
BlLLGT
8EG S

8€6 GF
8ES GF

984 LI
0EY 65

€5 G¥
2.6 €T
689 22

Z6€ 851
660 592
0e6 2i2
95/ BOF
¢6e 851
£¥l 8¥l
¥eL 8Ll
¢6E 8G|
¥6L 8Ll
LS L8]
6L 811
Leb 181
26t 861
0¢6 ¢iT
Glesie
C6E 8G1L
¥6L 811
¢6E 851
0g6 it
P64 811
¥EO G651
#6L 811
¥64L 811
é6t 851
ley £81
€6¢ 85|
¥el gLl
¥6. 8L1
¢6¢ 851
<6t 851
evl arl
ved S5l
<6t 851
¥6L 8L}
¥68 LE1
0L 491

WIN lwinpely 1o
OL 1pulen 1o

08 Bpumy D

SV EpNquey JID
$7 BYSOUd JIID

1 emBusyae 410
M BYZUBIBWSN J|1D
SLleq

13 paniy 0

ON equepey 11D
My eueyaeq 112
I emAusunpy 100
Iy tunbunysan o
WN BGR7 JI1D

3N UeyABYS 1D
Sy oBueyiysl 4D
ON ISOUBW 1D

dH 1Zpayaompy 415
dl epelen 4o

SN 1Zpneina 41D
3y 1Zpneny D
37 eqesel) o
N eqesebi] o
31 1Zpsyzuniy 41D
2V eebuzuy 41D
Iy nuebep 410

Il wabsewsy 410
£yl oBunyew 110
¥N 1Zpne|ci J10
W amBin 110

W 1zpnenw 10
ST esnpep (1D
AIN W 10

11 reAunipy g

3N eInyARY 4D
 elemyIysIaN 1D

(penupuoo) serued pajejay gy

puey U sainbi4

SJuawajels [eloueULy [ENUUY 3y} O} SIJON

€202 aunr 0f papUS JBak Su) 10} SJUSLUSIEIS |BIOLEBUIS [BRLUY
(EFEININ Jaquinu uonensiBay)

£20Z aunp o¢ Ayijedidlunyy [ev207 edwelny



56

spueswsnipe Jesh-loud Ag pajoaye usaqg BABY JBY) JUSLUS]EIS MO}

yseo pue soueuLousd [BIOUBLY JO JUSWS)E}S ‘Uolisod [BISUBLY JO JUBWISIEIS SU] Ul PaUIBIUOD SLUS) 89S0} 8B Mo|aq pajuasald

sjuaunsnlpe ieaf-loud 6%

LSIOJliSUNOD JO UONRISUNISY, $E S}0U 0} 18)oy

9LL £9L 08  ZBP ISSE L6Z 262 € 015 LZLE €68 581 07

205 18 808 6 00Z 0L - £6¥ L8 IN BwaIBWIEPEG J[ID
786 60T 19Z 62 €/Z 92 - Z6E 951 S lueRped 10
GIS ¥iT 0.6 €2 €/2 92 8EG GF ¥6. 811 gH oupinwey JiD
ze6 602 192 52 €/Z 92 - Z6E 26L T BUBMBUNIYSL 1D
Z€6 602 192 5T S/Z 92 - ZBE 951 31 zumzey 1D
266 602 192 52 €IT 92 - ZBE 951 M nyIsIysL 1D
16 60T 102 2T €/T 92 £15 €2 v6g 2E1L IH elelequizpR JIiD
266 602 192 6T €/Z 92 - ZBE 951 ¥ embuog JID
60 292 18812 €12 92 0St 65 65F €51 N BuemBYSEW 1D
856 60T ZL6 61 £/292 Z5¢C Ly 12§ 22l HIN BPUMY JD
Z8/ ¥ig 21108 €l2 92 - Z6S 851 L sjosem a0
6E6 602 PRI €479z 98/ L1 Sl 8L AL oyRUd 1D
BZL ¥LT 12582 £l292 98/ L1 Stl 8l S emBag o
ZE6 60T 9z 82 €42 92 - Z6E 8% 3w Hydepy o
£25 112 102 22 £z 92 €15 €2 0¥ 6ElL 7 Bmisoyd JiD
651 982 090 9 €42 92 OFS ¥S 987 651 dn ebabi 110
S6F T 726 18 €.292 0gc 16 026 2.2 N opucpel 41D
ISEGIZ ¥5. 9¢ £22 92 £P6 G2 £8€ 98| M 1ZR2auAoIni 1D

{panunuoo) saied pajesy gy

puey Ul sainbi4

sjuawiale)s [eloukUL] [enuuy 9Yj) 0} SOJON

£Z0Z 2UNr O pepua JEaA aU) 1o} SJUSWBIELS [BIOUBLIS [ENUUY
{EVEWIT Jegunu uolensIBay)

€20z aunr ¢ Ayjediojuny jevo] elowelnyy



Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023
(Registration number LIM343)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023 2022

49, Prior-year adjustments (continued)

47.1 During the current, it was identified that in the prior year a motor vehicle was erroneously submitted to council for write off
in error

The financial impact of the error was determined to be as follows:

Statement of financial position 2022
Property Plant and Equipment: Moter Vehicles (Cost) - {Increase)/Decrease 1417 002.00
Property Plant and Equipment: Motor Vehicles (Accumulated depreciation - (Increase)/Decrease (414 628.20)

Statement of financial performance
Gain/loss on disposal of assets and liabilities - Increase/{Decrease} (1 002 373.80)

47.2 During the current year, it was noted that a mall was built on land that was sold to a customer in the prior years and a
replacement site was requested

The financial impact of the error was determined to be as follows:

Statement of financial position 2022
Accumulated surplus - Increase/(Decrease} 30 000

Statement of financial position
Inventory: Land - Increase/(Decrease) {30 000)

47.3 During the current year, it was noted that land inventory was erroneously derecognised in error in the prior year
The financial impact of the error was determined to be as follows:

Statement of financial position 2022
Inventory: Land - {Increase)/Decrease 280 000

Statement of financial performance
General expenses:Cost of site sold - Increase/(Decrease) (280 000)

47.4 During the current year, it was noted that a property that was previously sold to Emerald Pearl Investment in 2018 was
refunded to the customer as the ownership could not be transaferred.

The financial impact of the error was determined to be as follows:

Statement of financial position 2022
Accumulated surplus - Increase/(Decrease) 1059 172

Statement of financial position
Payables from exchange transactions - Increase/(Decrease) (1059 172)

47.5 During the current year, it was noted that Roads and Stormwater - WIP was arreneously disclosed under Community
Assets - WIP

The financial impact of the error was determined to be as follows:

Statement of financial position 2022
Roads and Stormwater - WIP - (Increase)/Decrease 12 750

Statement of financial position
Community Assets - WIP - Increase/(Decrease) (12 750)

96




Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023
{Registration number LIM343)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023 2022

49. Prior-year adjustments (continued)

47.6 During the current year Skill development evy refund have been reclassified from revenue from exchange transactions fo
Revenue from non-exchange transactions

The financial impact of the error was determined to be as follows:

Statement of financial performance 2022
Revenue from exchange transactions: Other Income - Increase/(Decrease) 1186 322.66

Statement of financial performance
Revenue from non-exchange transactions: Skills development levy refund - (Increase)/Decrease (1 186 322.66)

47.7 During the year there was a communication from the ASB which clarified the accounting disclosures of the VAT amounts,
the guideline resulted in the previously combined VAT amount requiring to be disclosed separately between VAT input accrual,
VAT cutput accrual and VAR receivable from SARS

The financial Impact of the error was defermined to be as follows:

Statement of financial position 2022
Receivables fram exchange transactions - (increase)/Decrease ’ 11 442 676.94
Payables from exchange transactions - (increase)/Decrease ‘ {17 439 275.18}
VAT receivables - {Increase)/Decrease 5996 598.22

47.8 During the yearit was noted that invoices relating to water utilities were erroneously ommitted from the accounting records.

The financial impact of the error was determined to be as follows:

Statement of financial performance 2022
General expenses:Utilities - ( Increase)/Decrease 357498
Statement of financial Position

Accumulated surplus - Increase/(Decrease) 2311113
Payables from exchange transactions - {Increase}/Decrease (26 686.11)

Statement of financial position

2022
Note As previously Correction of Re- Restated
reported arror classificatian

Inventories 29771788 250 000 - 30021788
Praperty, plant and equipment 1722076 388 1002 374 - 1723078 762
Roads and Stormwater - WIP 220 876 909 - 12750 220 889 659
Community Assets - WIP 84 369 536 - (12750} 84 358 786
Payables from exchange transactions (96 270 058) (1085858} (17 439275} (114 804 192)
Accumulated Surplus (2 427 139 343) 1112 283 - (2 426 027 060)
Receivables from exchange transactions 18 927 235 - 11 442 677 30 369912
VAT receivables 5 881 666 - 5 996 588 11878 264

{441 514 880} 1278799 - (440 236 081)

Statement of financial performance
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Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023

(Registration number LIM343)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023 2022
49. Prior-year adjustments {continued)
2022
Note As previously Correction of Re- Restated
reported error classification
Loss on disposal of assefs and liabilities - Asset write off 7142 644 {1002 374) - 6 140 270
General expenditure 77 849 817 (276 425) - 77 573 392
Revenue from exchange transactions: Other Income {4 678 328) - 1186 323 (3 492 005)
Revenue from non-exchange transacfions: Skills - - (1186323} (1186 323)
development levy refund
Surplus for the year 80 314 133 {1278 799) - 79035334
Cash flow statement
2022
Note As previously Correction of Restated
reported error

Cash flow from operating activities
Inventeries (2 258 617} (250 000) {2508617)
Prior year adjustment - 1112283 1112 283
Surplus (182894 313)  (1278799) (184 173 112)
Gain on sale of assets and liabilities 7 142 644 {1002 374) 6 140 270
Payables from exchange fransactions 22 999 690 18525133 41524 823
Receivables from exchangse transactions (69 606 398) (11442 677) (81049 075)
VAT (39 063 368) (5996 598) (45 059 966)

{263 680 362) (333 032} (264 013 394)

50. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified.
51. Risk management

Financial risk management

Liguidity risk

The municipality’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available fo cover future commitments. The municipality manages
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

At 30 June 2023

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Consumer deposits

At 30 June 2022

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Consumer deposits

Lessthani Between1
year and 2 years
110 548 603 -
384 376 -
Lessthan1 Between
year and 2 years
114 804 195 -
363 209 -

Between 2
and 5 years

Over § years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 5 years
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Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023

{Registration number LIM343)
Annual Financia! Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2023 2022

51. Risk management (continued}
Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The
municipality only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Included in the main primary bank account is a guarantee/security of R850,000 to the Post Office. Should the Municipality faif
to meet payment obligations with the Post Office the amount will be paid over te the Post Office by the Bank.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument 2023 2022

FNB Money Market Investments 55 764 276 1655574
FNB Current Account 483 399 8256 395611 850
FNB Call Account 487 355 362 591135679
Receivables from exchange transactions 16 522 617 30 369 912

The municipality is exposed to a number of guarantees and for guarantees issued in favour of the Post Office. Refer
to note 9 for additional details.

Trade and other receivables for government department are not impaired.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

As the municipality has no significant interest-bearing assets, the municipality’s income and operating cash flows are

substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. At year end (June 2023), the financial instruments exposed to
interest rate risk were as follows:

Financial instrument 2023 2022

FNB Money Market Investments 55 764 276 1655574
FNB Current Account 483 399 825 395 611 850
FNB Call Account 487 355 362 591 135679

52. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2023, the municipality had an accumulated surplus of R 2 737 560 869 and that
the municipality's total assets exceed its liabilities by R 2 737 560 869,

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the municipality to continue as a going concern is dependent an a number of factors. The most significant of
these is that the accounting officer centinue to procure funding for the ongoing operations.

The municipality has reviewed the cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2024 and, in the light of this review and the current
financial position, the municipality is satisfied that it has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future,

53, Events after the reporting date

Management is not aware of any event after the end of the reporting period that provide evidence of conditions that existed at
the end of the reporting period which reguires an adjustment or disclosure to the annual financial statements.
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Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023

{Registration number LIM343)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023 2022

54, Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance as praviously reported 11750865 2084 976

Correction of prior period error (83 626) (826 186)
Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure identified - current 2 960 411 366 893

Less: Amount recovered - current - (81 735)
Less; Amount written off - current (685 817) (368 893)
Closing balance 3366023 1175 0585

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is presented inclusive of VAT.

55. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance as previously reported 837 730 289 909

Add: Irregular expenditure - current 9747 289 1508 307

Add: Irregular expenditure - prior peried 25 445 981 -

Less: Amount written off - current (1740 762) (960 486)
Closing balance 34 290 238 837 730

Iregular expenditure is presented inclusive of VAT.

56. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act

Contributions to organised local government

Current year subscription / fee 3670628 3445927

Amount paid - current year (3670 628) (3445927)
Material losses through criminal conduct

There were no losses suffered through financial misconduct during the current financial year.

Audit fees

Current year subscription / fee 5094 075 4134 084

Amount paid - current year (5094 075) (4134 084)
PAYE and UIF

Current year subscription / fee 55024 910 51 608 408

Amount paid - current year (55024 910) (51 608 408}
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Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023 |

{(Registration number LIM343)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2023 2022

56. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act {continued)

Pension and Medical Aid Deductions

Current year subscription / fee 79 533 911 73 638 894

Amount paid - current year

(79 533 911)

(73 638 894)

Defined c¢ontribution plan

Municipal Gratuity Fund 13579754 13007 473
Momentum provident Funds 2386 325 2 358 057
National Fund for Municipal workers 16 880 881 15 106 756
Municipal Employees pension fund 6 301 316 6363 419
Municipal Councillors pension fund 3120846 2 8950 470

42 278122 39786 175

It is the policy of the municipality to provide retirement benefits to all its employees. A number of defined contributian funds
were used in the current financial year. The municipality is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits. The total

municipal centribution fo such schemes are as listed above.

Councillors' arrear consumer accounts

The following Councillors had arrear accounts outstanding fer more than 90 days at 30 June 2023:

30 June 2023 Cutstanding  Outstanding Total
less than 90 more than 96 R
days days
R R

Cllr Ligaraba MJ 389 - 389
Clir Ligaraba LE 303 - 303
Clir Dali TS 838 - 838
Clir Malindi OT 4794 - 4794
Clir Madondo LM 24 - 24
Clir Mulaudzi MH 276 - 276

6624 - 6624
30 June 2022 Outstanding  Outstanding Total

less than 80 more than 90 R
days days
R R

Clir Madondo L i 715 726
Clir Ligaraba LE 942 25086 3448
ClIr Badamarema M - 183 183
Clir Madondo LM 305 4848 5153
Clir Mulaudzi MH 882 692 1574
Clir Nekhavhambe T 370 2010 2380

2510 10 954 13 464
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(Registration number LIM343} :
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
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Figures in Rand 2023 2022

56. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act (continued)
Supply chain management regulations
In terms of section 36 of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations any deviation from the Supply Chain

Management Palicy needs to be approved/condoned by the City Manager and noted by Council. The expenses incurred as
listed hereunder have been approved by the Municipal Manager and noted by council.

Incident

Repairs and maintenance 4277 224 3 857 68t
Training 863 221 837 730
Accommodation 1 257 360 693 245
Upgrading of road infrastructure 27 992 999 - -
Membership fees 285 261 -
Screening services 75 268 -

34758 333 5 488 656

Awards to close family members

Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations 45(a), (b} & (¢} of Government Gazette No.27636 issued on 30 May 2005
states that the notes to the annual financial statements of a municipality or municipal entity must disclose particulars of any
award of more than R2 000 to a person who is a spouse, child or parent of a person in the service of the state, or has been in
the service of the state in the previous 12 months, including—

(a) the name of that person;
{b} the capacity in which that person is in the service of the state; and
{c} the amount of the award

Bidder and Name of state Capacity Amount
employee
Gerson Matamela Holdings - R L Department of Health 9206 011
Tshibalanganda — Spouse of director )
ADY EM — Technical — R W Moekwa Eskom 10 115 446
— Spouse of director
Arehone Supply and Catering - Part time councilor - 6088
Tshisikule Khakhathi — (Part-time Award of catering
counciler) was made to spouse

(Mphanama

Naledzani) who is a
director of Arshone
Supply and Catering

19 327 525

57. Accounting by principals and agents

The entity is a party to a principal-agent arrangement(s).
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Thulamela Local Municipality 30 June 2023

{Registration number LIM343)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2023 2022

57. Accounting by principals and agents {continued)
Details of the arrangment is as follows:

Thulamela Local Municipality acts as an implementing agent on behalf of the Department of Transport {Principal} as they
administer certain functions on behalf of the Department such as licensing and registration of motor vehicles.

The provincial government, through the respective provincial department of transport, is mandated to collect motor vehicle
licenses on an annual basis. The provincial department of transport determines the fee that is payable annually by motor
vehicle owners, which varies depending on the type of motor vehicle owned.

Te make the payment of the motor vehicle licenses easier, the provincial departments entered into a contractual arrangement
with the Thulamela local municipafity to undertake this activity on their behalf. In terms of the arrangement:

*  The provinicial department of fransport issues the motor vehicle licence renewal form to the respective owners of the
motor vehicles, indicating the amount due for the year

. The municipality provide facilities for owners of motor vehicles to pay their licences.

. The provinicial department provides the municipality with access to its 1T systems so that they can capture the
amounts received and issue the motor vehicle licenses on their behalf. The system automatically generates the
motor vehicle license upon capturing the payment of the fees due.

*  The municipality collect the fees due from motor vehicles awners and simultaneously issue the naw licenses on
behalf of the provincial government.

. The municipalities are required to pay over any revenue (cash) collected to the provincial government in respect of
motor vehicle licenses.

*  The municipalities are entitled to retain 20% and 3% of the cash collected for undertaking this activity for the
provincial Depariment of Transport and AARTO respectively.

Na significant risks exist other than risks associated with cash management. The application controls designed within the I T
system are adequate to correctly account for such revenues.

Entity as agent
Revenue recognised

The aggregate amount of revenue that the entity recognised as compensation for the transactions carried ouf on behalf of the
principal Is R10 484 321 (2022: R9 417 738).

Additional information

Revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with third parties undertaken in terms of the principal-agent
arrangement

~ Amount of revenue received on behalf of the principal during the reporting period

Revenue received or to be received on behalf of the principal 25420479 22 352 305

Recsivables and/or payables recognised based on the rights and obligations established in the binding
arrangement(s}

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of payables

Expenses incurred on behalf of the principal : 25420 479 22 352 305
Amounts transferred to the principal {25 420 479) (22 352 305)

All categories
Expenses incurred on behalf of the principal 25 420 479 22 352 305
Amounts transferred to the principal (25 420 479) (22 352 305)
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58. Segment information
General information
Identification of segments

For management purposes, the municipality is organised and opsrates in four key functional segments (or business units).
To this end, management monitors the operating results of these business units for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocations and assessment of performance. Revenues and expenditures relating to these business units are
allocated at a transactional level. Costs relating to the governance and administration of the municipality are not allocated
to these business units. ‘

The four key business units comprise of:

. Community and public safety which includes community and social services, sport and recreation, public safety,
health and housing services;

. Economic and environmental services which includes planning and development, road transport and
environmental protection services;

. Trading services which includes energy saurces, water management, waste water management and waste
management services,

. Governance and administration which includes executive and council, finance and administration and
internal audit

Aggregated segments

The grouping of these segments is consistent with the functional classification of government activities which considers the
nature of the services, the beneficiaries of such services and the fees charged for the services rendered (if any).
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